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...and we say to them, this country is not for the faint-hearted; complaining 
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Sure, the hustle takes its toll on the body. That’s why we give it the 
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NOTICE OF THE 21ST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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stNo�ce is hereby given that the 21  Annual General 
Mee�ng of Fidson Healthcare Plc will hold on 

rdThursday, the 23  of July 2020 at the Conference 
nd

Centre, 2  Floor, Fidson Towers, 268 Ikorodu Road, 
Obanikoro, Lagos at 11.00 a.m. to transact the 
following businesses:

Ordinary Business

1. To lay before the mee�ng the audited accounts 
st

for the year ended 31  December 2019 together 
with the reports of the Directors, Auditors and 
Audit Commi�ee thereon.

2. To declare a dividend.
3. To re-elect directors.  
4. To authorize the Directors to fix the 

remunera�on of the Auditors. 
5. To elect members of the Audit Commi�ee in 

accordance with Sec�on 359(4) (5) of the 
Companies and Allied Ma�ers Act, CAP C20 LFN 
2004.

Special Business
6. To fix the remunera�on of Directors.

7. To consider and if thought fit pass the following 
resolu�on as a special resolu�on:

 “That a new Ar�cle 38 of the Ar�cles of 
Associa�on of the Company be and is hereby 
inserted  to read as follows:

 “A mee�ng of the Board of Directors may be held 
by conference call, video call or other digital or 
electronic means. A Director shall be en�tled to 
par�cipate in a Board Mee�ng by any Digital or 
electronic means and where a Director so 
par�cipates, he shall be counted for the purpose 
of determining whether a quorum has been 
formed and for determining the outcome of any 
vote taken at the mee�ng.”

8. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following 
as an ordinary resolu�on:

 “That the general mandate given to the Company 
to enter into recurrent transac�ons with related 
par�es for the Company's day-to-day opera�ons, 
including amongst others the procurement of 

goods and services, on normal commercial terms 
be and is hereby renewed.”

NOTES

1. Proxy
 A member en�tled to a�end and vote at the 

Annual General Mee�ng is en�tled to appoint a 
proxy to a�end and vote in his/her stead.  A proxy 
form is a�ached.  All instruments of proxy should 
be duly completed and deposited at the 
registered office of the company at No 268 
Ikorodu Road, Obanikoro, Lagos or the office of 
the Registrars, Meristem Registrars Limited, 213 
Herbert Macaulay Way, Adekunle Yaba, Lagos or 
by email info@meristemregistrars.com not later 
than 48 hours before the commencement of the 
mee�ng to enable the Company stamp the proxy 
forms at its expense.

 In compliance with the Federal Government's 
direc�ve on social distancing and rules limi�ng 
social gathering to a maximum of 20 people, the 
company approached the Corporate Affairs 
Commission and obtained approval to conduct 
the mee�ng by proxy and to consider the special 
businesses listed above.   Accordingly,  any of the 
underlisted persons who are also shareholders 
of the company may be appointed a proxy, viz:

 1.  Mr. Segun Adebanji, FCA

 2.  Dr. Fidelis Ayebae

 3.  Chief Ma�hew Akinlade, FCA

 4.  Sir Sunny Nwosu

 5.  Chief Timothy Adesiyan

 6.   Mrs. Bisi Bakare

 7.  Mr. Femi Oduyemi

 8.  Mrs. Efunyemi Obideyi

 9.  Mr. Boniface Okezie

2. Dividend Payment
 If the dividend recommended by the Directors is 

approved by members at the Annual General 
th

Mee�ng, payment would be made on Friday 24  
of July 2020 to members whose names appeared 
in the Register of members at the close of 

th
business on the  6  of July 2020.  In line with the 
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direc�ves of the Securi�es and Exchange 
Commission to pay dividend electronically by 
d i re c t  c re d i t  to  t h e  b a n k  a c co u nt s  o f 
shareholders, the dividend would be paid 

accordingly.

3. Closure of Register of Members
 The Register of Members and Transfer Books of 

th th
the company will be closed from 7  to 13  of July 
2020 (both dates inclusive) for the purpose of the 
annual general mee�ng's no�ce and payment of 
dividend.

4. Nomina�on of members of the audit 
commi�ee

 Any member may nominate a shareholder as a 
member of the Audit Commi�ee by giving no�ce 
in wri�ng of such nomina�on to the Company 
Secretary at least 21 days before the Annual 
General Mee�ng.

5. E-Dividend
 Pursuant to the direc�ve of the Securi�es and 

Exchange Commission no�ce is hereby given to 
all shareholders to respec�vely open a bank 
account, stockbroking account and CSCS account 
for the purpose of e-dividend.  Forms are 
a�ached to this annual report for comple�on by 
all shareholders to furnish the par�culars of these 
accounts to the Registrars (Meristem Registrars 
and Probate Limited) as soon as possible.

6. Securi�es holders' rights
 In compliance with rule 19.12 (c) of The Nigerian 

Stock Exchange's regula�on, a member and other 
securi�es holders of the company may ask 
ques�ons not only at the annual general mee�ng 
but also in wri�ng before the mee�ng. Such 
ques�ons should be submi�ed at least one week 
before the date of the mee�ng.

7. Live streaming of the AGM
 To enable Shareholders and other Stakeholders 

who will not be able to a�end the mee�ng 
physically to follow the mee�ng proceedings the 
Annual General Mee�ng will be streamed live. 

Link for the live streaming will be made available 
on the Company's website:  in www.fidson.com
due course.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

J. ABAYOMI ADEBANJO, FCIS 
FRC/2013/ICSAN/00000002161
COMPANY SECRETARY
268, Ikorodu Road, Lagos

nd
Dated this 22  day of June 2020.

          

http://www.fidson.com
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The Company

Fidson currently manufactures from its ultramodern, Current Good Manufacturing Prac�ce (CGMP) compliant 
factory in Sango Ota, Ogun State. The company is one of a few local pharmaceu�cal manufacturers that are 
candidates for pre-qualifica�on by the World Health Organiza�on. By leveraging our rela�onships and 
collabora�ng with various overseas manufacturers, most of whom are market leaders in their areas of 
specializa�ons, we are able to deliver hundreds of high quality medicines to Nigerians. Today, Fidson is one of 
the largest employers of pharmacists in Nigeria, outside of government ins�tu�ons, and we constantly employ 
global best prac�ces in our opera�ons.

About Us

Fidson Healthcare Plc started opera�ons on March 1, 1995 as a local distributor of pharmaceu�cal products. 
Barely a year a�er, the company moved into an importa�on of its own brand of finished medicines. The 
company set up its first local manufacturing facility in July 2002. In March 2005, Fidson became the first 
company in sub-Saharan Africa to manufacture An�retroviral (ARVs) drugs.In February 2007, Fidson set up a 
second manufacturing facility and ceded the former manufacturing facility to an interna�onal joint venture 
project, which led to se�ng up of Ecomed Pharma Limited.

In November of the same year, the company received the NIS ISO 9001:2000 cer�fica�on of its Quality 
Management System by the Standard Organiza�on of Nigeria (SON). In 2008, the company was listed on the 
floor of the Nigerian Stock Exchange, NSE to become a publicly quoted company. In 2009, the company won 
the Financial Standard Sector Leader Award and received the NIS ISO 9001:2008 Cer�fica�on in 2011.

The tremendous and phenomenal growth of Fidson, without a doubt has been guided by providence and a 
team of young, passionate, dedicated and goal-driven field personnel, seasoned managers and a visionary 
management team driven by a passion for excellence and credibility.



Our Core Values

MISSION

To be the preferred company that adds value to life with brands 
that deliver sustainable, profitable growth.

VISION

To be the preferred healthcare provider.
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VISION, MISSION & CORE VALUES

...we value life

continuously



DIRECTORS   Mr. Segun Adebanji  Chairman 
    Dr. Fidelis A. Ayebae  Managing Director/Chief Execu�ve Officer
    Mrs. Olufunmilola O. Ayebae Non- Execu�ve
    Mr. Emmanuel E. Imoagene Non- Execu�ve
    Mrs. Aisha P. Sadauki  Non - Execu�ve
    Ms. Mabel Ndagi  Non-Execu�ve ( Re�red 26/09/2019)
    Mr. Olugbenga O. Olayeye Execu�ve
    Mr. Abiola A. Adebayo  Execu�ve

COMPANY SECRETARY  Mr. J. Abayomi Adebanjo 

REGISTERED OFFICE  268, Ikorodu Road, Obanikoro agos., L
 
    Tel: 01-7406817, 01-8936502 
    www.fidson.com, e-mail-info@fidson.com 

AUDITORS   Deloi�e & Touche 
    (Chartered Accountants) 
    Civic Towers, Plot GA1 Ozumba Mbadiwe Avenue, 
    Victoria Island, Lagos. 
    E-mail:ngci@deloi�e.com.ng 

SOLICITORS   Oval Law Firm 
    110, Obafemi Awolowo Way 
    Ikeja, Lagos 
    Tel: 234 802 326 4780 
 

Tokunbo Orimobi Legal Prac��oners' 
    Plot 1963B Braimoh Kenku Street,Victoria Island, Lagos 
    Tel: 2348055190065 

BANKERS   Access Bank Plc 
    Bank of Industry Limited 
    FSDH Merchant Bank Limited 
    Fidelity Bank Plc 
    First Bank of Nigeria Limited 
    First City Monument Bank Plc 
    Guaranty Trust Bank Plc 
    Stanbic IBTC Bank Plc 
    Union Bank of Nigeria Plc 
    United Bank for Africa Plc 
    Wema Bank Plc 
    Zenith Interna�onal Bank Plc 

REGISTRARS   Meristem Registrars Limited 
    213, Herbert Macaulay Way 
    Adekunle, Yaba Lagos , 
    Tel: 234 18920491 
    Email: info@meristemregistrars.com
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2019



DON’T LET A 
COUGH
RUIN YOUR DAY

Daytime Care

...for cough, cold & allergy

The job gets done The job gets done 
when the cold is gonewhen the cold is gone

The job gets done 
when the cold is gone



Mr. Segun Adebanji  FCA

Chairman
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2019

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

You will no doubt agree with me that we are in an 
unusual �me in  world history. For this reason, most of 
our numerous shareholders who unfortunately are not 
able to join us physically here today will join us online. 
Our best wishes to you all for your loyalty and support 
for this great company, Fidson Healthcare Plc.

10

INTRODUCTION 
Dis�nguished shareholders, representa�ves of 
regulatory bodies, fellow directors, gentlemen of the 
press, ladies and gentlemen. It is with pleasure that I 

st
welcome you all to the 21  annual general mee�ng of 
our great company.
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT 
The country held her elec�ons in February and March 
2019, which nega�vely impacted business opera�ons in 
Q1 2019 due to postponement and rescheduling of the 
elec�ons. The reelec�on of the ruling party was at both 
federal and state levels, with great expecta�ons from 
the government whose policy thrust was to priori�ze 
security, infrastructural development, poverty 
allevia�on and an�-corrup�on. These policy priori�es 
were aimed at boos�ng the standard of living of the 
average Nigerian. A lot of these expecta�ons have been 
largely unrealized, as the country's economy has 
remained largely stagnant. 

The economy kicked off at a rather slow pace, as  the 
first half of the year was dominated by the uncertain�es 
surrounding the general elec�ons. These uncertain�es, 
coupled with low Capital Expenditure  and restric�ve 
fiscal policies, resulted in GDP growth of 2.1% in the first 
two quarters of the year. The growth rate,  however, 
improved to 2.6% in Q4,  largely driven by growth in the 
non-oil sector and the yule�de season. In all, the 
economy grew by 2.3% in FY2019 (up from 1.9% in 
2018), which was slower than popula�on growth of 
2.7%, resul�ng in lower per capita income.

The Naira was stable in 2019 rela�ve to 2018. However, 
there were concerns about the ability of the CBN to 
sustain the exchange rate, given a con�nued decline in 
foreign exchange reserves. Reserves declined from 
US$43.08 billion at the beginning of 2019 to US$38.6 
billion as at 31st December 2019. The CBN technically 
“devalued” the Naira by 15% in March 2020, moving 
from N307/US$1 to N360/US$1, with the I&E window 
moving to N380/US$1 in the face of falling reserves and 
with declining crude oil revenues.

With the fiscal landscape facing major headwinds, 
owing to the combined impact of low revenues and high 
cost of debt servicing, the monetary authori�es 
focused on promo�ng growth. Measures like the 
closure of the land borders in Q3 2019 to combat 
smuggling and execu�on of the new minimum wage 
were implemented. Other monetary policies 
implemented include the introduc�on of minimum 
Loan-to-Deposit Ra�o for banks and restric�on of 
investments by individuals and small firms  in 
government treasury bills. These measures led to a 
reported increase in gross credit by over N1.1 trillion 
between May and October 2019 and decrease in 

interest (borrowing) rate by over 400 bps between June 
and October 2019. Headline infla�on increased to 
11.98% in December 2019, compared to 11.44% in 
December 2018. The monetary policy rate (MPR) stood 
at 13.5% in 2019.

Nigeria's Ease of Doing Business ranking improved by 39 
places from 170 in 2015 to 131 in 2019, which 
underscores the government's effort at ensuring 
improved ranking to a�ract foreign investments into 
the country. Despite this achievement, doing business 
in Nigeria remains challenging and has not a�racted as 
much capital as expected. Policy uncertainty and 
insecurity are largely responsible for this decline in 
inflows of foreign investments. The  a�acks by Boko 
Haram insurgents, along with waves of kidnapping, 
armed robbery and other crimes across the na�on, 
increased in 2019. The Nigerian military, alongside 
other law enforcement agencies, intensified counter-
terrorism measures to repel the insurgents and 
recorded laudable successes.

THE HEALTHCARE INDUSTRY
The contribu�on of the Healthcare subsector to the 
Nigerian GDP remained low (at 1%) in 2019.  It is hoped 
that with the government's renewed focus on the 
sector in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the 
situa�on will improve.

The Nigerian healthcare system is bedeviled by many 
challenges, including limited public funding, rising 
incidences of communicable and non-communicable 
diseases, elevated rates of infant and maternal 
mortality among others. There is high reliance on out-
of-pocket (OOP) health payments as a means of 
financing the health system in Nigeria and  this has 
con�nued for many years, in spite of a consensus to 
move closer to Universal Health Coverage (UHC) and to 
sustain it when achieved.

The Federal Government's health policy under the 
Economic Recovery & Growth Plan 2017-2020 aims to 
improve the availability, accessibility, affordability and 
quality of health services by increasing access to 
primary health care services, expanding health 
coverage and improving the quality of the services 
provided. More is s�ll desired from the Health 
Insurance Act, as many states of the Federa�on are yet 
to sign their respec�ve Health Insurance Legisla�on.

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (cont’d.)
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The role of healthcare ins�tu�ons is underscored now 
more than ever before and the work of agencies like the 
Na�onal Centre for Disease Control (NCDC), set up 
through the enabling Act signed in November 2018, was 
prominent in the fight against the COVID-19 pandemic.

The pharmaceu�cal industry remains a key player in the 
sector and the advocacy of the key players in the 
industry under the umbrella of PMG-MAN, towards 
having implemen�ng government policies that will 
encourage and sustain local drugs manufacturing, is 
increasing. Over-reliance on foreign medicines will 
certainly jeopardize local manufacturing capacity and 
endanger na�onal response to emergency and 
pandemic situa�ons like the one the world is currently 
witnessing. Amongst the players in the industry, your 
company con�nues to sustain its esteemed leadership 
posi�on in driving change.

All hands must be on deck to ensure a healthy na�on for 
enhance produc�vity of the ci�zenry.

PERFORMANCE AND OPERATING RESULTS
stTurnover for the year ended 31  December 2019 was 

N14.062 billion, compared with N16.229 billion in 
2018, represen�ng a decline of 13%. The reduc�on in 
turnover was driven by the impact of the 2019 elec�ons 
in the first half of 2019, lack of patronage by 
government ins�tu�ons and our drive to control and 
reduce trade receivables. Sales orders from customers 
with debts above the credit days were not a�ended to 
in order to bring the receivables down and this in turn 
affected the turnover. These measures ul�mately led to 
a reduc�on in Trade receivables from N3.46 billion in 
FY2018 to N2.67 billion in Fy2019.

Gross margin improved from 39% in the previous year 
to 42% in 2019. Finance cost declined by 10% from 
N1.925 billion to N1.735 billion due to the Rights Issue 
in July 2019, the proceeds of which were used to repay 
expensive bank loans, and a loan of N2.0 billion from 
Bank of Industry. The inflows were also used to finance 
capital expenditures and working capital needs. The 
Opera�ng profit increased from N2.049 billion in 2018 
to N2.253 billion – an increase of 9.95%. Profit a�er tax 
for the year was N407.188 million compared to a loss of 
N97.4 million in 2018.

Despite the reduc�on in turnover, opera�ng profit 
increased because of improvement in cost of sales and 
savings in opera�ng expenses driven by several cost-

op�miza�on ini�a�ves across all segments of the 
business. We intend to con�nue in this direc�on into 
the future.

MANUFACTURING FACILITIES
Our expansion ini�a�ve con�nued throughout the year 
under review. At present, the produc�on output has 
increased to 4 million units (monthly) of different SKUs. 
We are making addi�onal investments in terms of 
automa�ng machines and processes to conform to 
interna�onal good manufacturing prac�ces (GMP). We 
a re  a l s o  ex p a n d i n g  p ro d u c � o n  ca p a c i t y  to 
accommodate contract manufacturing partnerships, 
including the recent partnership agreement with 
GlaxoSmithKline Plc (GSK) signed during the year under 
review.

With this con�nuous expansion, we hope to increase 
output and efficiency in order to reduce variable costs, 
thereby ensuring affordability on the part of our 
numerous patrons, despite the challenging opera�ng 
environment.

THE IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE COMPANY
The 2020 Federal Government of Nigeria budget is 
predicated on GDP growth rate of 2.93%. However, 
these expecta�ons have changed due to the global 
COVID-19 pandemic which has prac�cally locked down 
the world economy in Q2 2020. The consequence of this 
development is an imminent recession that  Nigeria and 
the world economy will face.

Devalua�on of the Naira became inevitable due to the 
drop in the price of crude oil that has affected the 
country's foreign exchange income and reserves. In our 
industry, where up to 95% of raw and packaging 
materials are imported, the devalua�on will further put 
pressure on prices of these materials and ul�mately 
finished products.

The closure of factories in China and India due to 
lockdowns in both countries meant produc�on 
materials were not readily available. The disrup�ons to 
supply of key raw and packaging materials sourced from 
Asia have therefore led to cost increases. 

The pandemic, coupled with a congested seaport, has 
also impacted logis�cs costs. Ancillary costs such as  
ocean freight costs and inland transporta�on, amongst 
others, have increased.

2019 Annual Reports & Accounts
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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On a posi�ve note, the COVID-19 pandemic is providing 
opportuni�es to explore development of new products 
for trea�ng infec�ous diseases. The pandemic has also 
compelled the government to priori�ze the healthcare 
sector, with the pharmaceu�cal industry set to benefit 
from these policy changes.

The impacts iden�fied above could lead to lower profit 
margins and reduced cash flow in the business in the 
interim. These risks are being mi�gated  to secure the 
sustainability of the business in the near- to long-term. 
The following are some of the measures we are taking:

Price increase – We have increased prices for some 
affected products to cushion the rise in produc�on 
costs arising from the disrup�ons to supply chains 
caused by COVID-19. We will con�nue to  balance the 
need to recoup margin losses and maintain acceptable 
market prices, given the compe��ve nature of the 
pharmaceu�cal industry and reducing disposable 
incomes of the consumers.

Finance cost – Finance cost represents a significant 
por�on of our expenses and repayment of loans is a 
major component of our monthly cash flows. We are 
taking advantage of reduced interest rates and 
measures recently introduced by the Central Bank of 
Nigeria to source cheaper funding, thereby reducing 
the impact of debt repayment and interest costs on our 
cash flows. 

Inventory – Our ability to replenish inventory was 
hampered by funding constraints prior to the rights 
issue. We have reviewed our stock holding policy and 
taken ac�on to replenish the inventory pipeline, taking 
into considera�on the elongated lead �mes caused by 
the supply chain disrup�ons referred to earlier.  

Government Policies – We are taking advantage of 
government policies geared towards promo�ng local 
manufacture by inves�ng in product development and 
adequately equipping our factory for increased and 
efficient local produc�on. These investments will 
enable us respond quickly to poten�al demand 
increase.
Overall, your Board e believes that your company will 
weather most of the shocks caused by the pandemic 
and emerge successful in the months ahead.

THE BOARD
The Board of Directors remained unchanged during the 
year under review.  In line with the requirements of the 

law and good corporate governance, two of the seven 
directors re�re by rota�on and would be presented for 
re-elec�on at this mee�ng. These are Mrs. O. O. Ayebae 
and I. 

DIVIDEND
The Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend of 
15 kobo per 50 kobo ordinary share, same as in 2018 
and amoun�ng to N225,000,000 (two hundred and 
twenty-five million naira only). The dividend is subject 
to the deduc�on of appropriate statutory withholding 
tax. If approved, payments will be made on the 24th of 
July 2020.

FUTURE OUTLOOK
Your Board is commi�ed to implemen�ng the strategic 
priori�es aimed at sustaining the leadership posi�on of 
your company within the healthcare sector. Close 
a�en�on is being paid to human capital development 
to ensure a robust succession planning process and 
empower the future leaders of the company. We have 
also sought and secured useful interna�onal 
collabora�on and partnership that will  enhance the 
future prospects of the company. Given the importance 
of research and development in our industry, we hope 
to access government interven�on funds for purposes 
of retooling the manufacturing capacity and deepen 
our product pipeline in order to address consumer 
demands and strengthen our market leadership. 
We are cau�ously op�mis�c about the future of your 
company.

CONCLUSION
At this juncture, I would like to express the gra�tude of 
the Board, Management, staff to our numerous 
customers, shareholders, and the general public for 
your con�nued interest in the company.  On behalf of 
the Board, I would like to appreciate the immense 
contribu�on of the management and staff of your 
company for their commitment, dedica�on and 
impressive achievements during the year. Above all, I 
give glory to God Almighty for allowing us to witness 
this day. We also pray for God's protec�on over all our 
staff, customers and stakeholders against the COVID-19 
pandemic. 

Ladies and gentlemen, I thank you for your a�en�on.
 
Segun Adebanji, FCA
Chairman
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019

Mr Adebanji attended Yaba College of 
Technology and obtained his Ordinary 
National Diploma (Accounting) in 
1973. He completed the Chartered 
Association of Certied Accountants' 
examinations in June 1975 and 
served his ar t icles with Peat, 
Marwick Cassleton Elliot & Co in 
Nigeria between June 1973 and May 

1976. He was admitted a Fellow of 
both the Chartered Association of 
Certied Accountants (FCCA) and the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Nigeria (FCA) in December 1982 and 
November 1988 respectively.

 

Mr Adebanji joined UAC of Nigeria in 
1976 and car r ied out various 
assignments within the UAC Group 
until he was seconded to Unilever Plc, 
London as Management Group 
Accountant in 1988. He returned to 
UAC at the end of 1990 as the Group 
Treasurer. In 1992, Mr Adebanji was 
seconded to Unilever South Africa as 
Audit Manager with sub-regional 
responsibilities for Unilever Plc 
subs id iar ies  in  South  Af r ica , 
Zimbabwe, Malawi, Tanzania, Kenya 
and Ghana.

He returned to Nigeria in October1995 
to serve as the Financial Director of 
Nigerian Breweries Plc (appointed in 

January 1996), and was later 
seconded to Heineken International in 
the Netherlands as Group Treasurer 
from 1998 to 2001. He also served 
Heineken as Managing Director of 
Ghana Breweries Ltd and Namibia 
Breweries Ltd between 2001 and 
2007. He retired from the Heineken 
Group af ter his assignment in 
Namibia, and practiced as a Financial 
Consultant until he joined African 
Capital Alliance in January 2011 as a 
Principal. He retired from African 
Capital Alliance in January, 2019.

Mr Adebanji is a Non-executive 
Director of Daraju Industries Ltd, 
C o r n e r s t o n e  I n s u r a n c e  P l c , 
Multimedia Ghana Ltd, ARM Holdings 
Ltd, and Bankers Warehouse Ltd. He 
also serves as the Chairman of 
Filmhouse Ltd and Crest Agro 
Products Ltd. He was until 2018 a 
Non-Executive Director of Nigerian 
Breweries Plc.

Mr. Segun Adebanji, FCA

Chairman

Dr. Fidelis Ayebae
Managing Director/Chief Executive 
Ofcer

Fidelis Ayebae graduated from the 
Mainland Institute of Technology in 
1976 with a Diploma in Civ i l 
Engineering. He obtained Advanced 
Diploma in Business Administration 
from the University of Lagos in 1999.

He is an Associate of the Chartered 
Institute of Administration and also a 
member of the Nigeria Institute of 
Management.

After working in various capacities in 
a number of organizations, including 
Citibank Limited, he started as the 

Founder and Pioneer Chief Executive 
Ofcer at Fidson Healthcare Limited in 
1995. He is also the Chairman and 
Director of many other companies.

He has attended many courses, both 
locally and internationally including 
banking operation, organisation 
development skills, selling skills e.t.c.
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Mrs. Olufunmilola Ayebae
Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Olufunmilola O Ayebae completed her 

Professional Secretaries Diploma from The 

London College of Secretaries in the United 

Kingdom.

She worked in many organizations in 

various capacities for a number of years 

before establishing her own business – 

Goodness Supermarket in 1995 and 

served as the Managing Director/CEO for 3 

years, she is also the MD/CEO of 

Townhouse Limited . She became a 

director of Fidson Healthcare Plc in 2001.

Mr. Emmanuel Imoagene
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Emmanuel Imoagene was appointed to 

the Board of Directors effective February 

2011. He is the Founder and Lead 

Consultant of Multivaluedge Consulting 

Limited, a rm that is focused on working 

with the leadership and management 

teams of largely indigenous businesses 

with aspirations for sustainable long term 

value. 

He has diverse experience spanning over 

three decades in several blue-chip 

companies including Shell Petroleum 

Development Company of Nigeria Limited, 

Nigerian Breweries Plc, Unilever Ghana 

Limited, Cadbury Nigeria Plc, Dangote 

Cement Plc, amongst others. In the course 

of his career, he held several senior 

leadership positions in human resources, 

logistics and procurement. He also has 

signicant experience in corporate 

governance and general management 

practice. 

Mr. Imoagene received his undergraduate 

degree from the University of Benin, and his 

graduate degree from the University of 

Ibadan. He is a fellow of the Chartered 

Institute of Personnel Management of 

Nigeria. 

Chief (Mrs.) Aishatu Sadauki, OON
Non-Executive Director

(Chief) Mrs. Sadauki holds a Bsc. Degree in 

Home Economics with a Major in 

Community Nutrition from Iowa State 

University, Iowa USA in 1968. She has 

attended several courses and seminars on 

board development evaluation within and 

outside the country. 

Chief (Mrs) Sadauki was an accomplished 

civil servant who rose from the position of 

Chief Agricultural Ofcer (State Home 

Economist) in 1964 to the position of Chief 

Ag r i cu l t u r a l  O fce r  (S t a t e  Home 

Economist) in 1986.

She was appoin ted Kaduna Sta te 

Commissioner, Social Development, Youth 

and Sports in 1988, Commissioner of 

Education in 1989 and Deputy Governor 

kaduna State from 1990 to 1992. Chief Mrs 

Sadauki is a Director of many companies 

including Zazzau Ginnery Limited, D. A. 

Sadauki Investments Limited, Hillside 

Company Limited and MTN Foundation 

amongst others. 

She was conferred with Merit Award by 

Nigerian Veterinary Medical Association of 

Farmers in 1999 and National Honour of 

Ofcer of the Order of the Federal Republic 

of Nigeria (OON) in 2000.
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Mr. Biola Adebayo
Operations Director

Mr Adebayo graduated from the School of 
Pharmacy, University of Lagos in 1988. He 
also has a Diploma in Advanced Computer 
Techniques and Applications (1998) from 
the University of Ibadan (Consultancy Unit). 
He worked with the Federal Ministry of 
Health in Lagos as an intern pharmacist. He 
began his career with Glaxo Nigeria Plc in 
April 1991 as a medical representative. He 
later on joined the pharmaceutical division 
of CAP PLC in July 1994 where he 
developed his skills and competencies in 
the sales and marketing of healthcare 
products and FMCGs.

He continued his career with Fidson 
Healthcare Plc in 1996 and held various 
positions in the sales and marketing 
division and rose through the ranks to 
become the Sales and Marketing Manager 
in April 2001. In 2004, he became the Sales 
and Marketing Director, the position he 
occupied till July 2009. He is currently the 
Operations Director in the company.

He is a member of the Institute of Directors 

(IOD). He also completed a top executive 

leadership programme jointly organized by 

Nigeria Institute of Management (NIM) and 

M a n c h e s t e r  B u s i n e s s  S c h o o l  i n 

Manchester, England, United Kingdom in 

2007.

Mr. Olugbenga Olayeye
Sales & Marketing Director

A Pharmacist educated at Nigeria’s premier 

University- the University of Ibadan and the 

Stanford Graduate School of Business. 

 He has pursued a  career  in  the 

pharmaceutical industry since graduation 

with Fidson Healthcare Plc. He has worked 

across diverse functions (Sales and 

Market ing, Business development, 

M a n u f a c t u r i n g ,  R e s e a r c h  a n d 

Development and Operations) in the 

company since inception and has been 

pivotal in determining her policy direction, 

strategy execution and has managed 

organizational change and transformation 

over the period.

In his present role, he leads a team of over 

200 salesmen and has the responsibility to 

formulate and implement the company’s 

sales and marketing strategies. 

An exciting person to have on a team, he is 

commi t t ed  t o  t eam bu i l d i ng  and 

development of leadership skills and ability 

which he believes is the critical requirement 

for organizational growth and corporate 

success.
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1.0  The directors have pleasure in submi�ng to the 
members of the Company their report together with 
the audited financial statements for the year ended 
31 December 2019.

2.0  PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES       
The principal ac�vi�es of the Company are the 
manufacture and distribu�on of pharmaceu�cal 
products which includes drugs, infusion and 
in jectable.  The company commenced local 
manufacturing of pharmaceu�cal products in July 
2002.

3.0  OPERATING RESULT

4.0  LEGAL FORM
The company operated as a Private Limited Liability 
Company un�l June 5, 2008 when it was registered as a 
Public Limited Liability Company. The shares are 
currently quoted on the floor of the Nigerian Stock 
Exchange (NSE).
    
4.0  STATE OF AFFAIRS       
In the opinion of the Directors, the state of the 
Company's affairs is sa�sfactory and there has been no 
material change since the repor�ng date, which would 
affect the financial statements as presented.

5.0  DIVIDEND
The directors propose to pay dividend of N0.15k 
amoun�ng to N312,939,037.5 out of the profit for the 
year ended 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: 
N0.15k, N225,000,000). Proposed dividend will only 
be recognised as a liability a�er approval by the 
shareholders at the Annual General Mee�ng.

6.0  MAJOR CUSTOMERS 
 Lagos
 Great Dan-White Int'l Limited
 Zimaco Pharm Limited
 Ozara Distribu�on Limited
 Berebzo Pharmaceu�cals Limited
 Iykmavia Pharma Ltd.

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019

     West 
 Royal Michael
 Fiolu Pharmacy
 Gi� Pharmaceu�cals
 Tanimola Pharm
 Uchecare Pharmacy

7.0  MAJOR SUPPLIERS  
 Overseas Suppliers
 V.S Interna�onal
 TIL Exports Pvt Limited India
 Gland Pharma Ltd India
 Capsugel (Belgium)
 Oriental Containers Ltd, India
 MJ Biopharm Pvt Ltd
 Themis Medicare Ltd
 Medinomics Healthcare Pvt Ltd
 JC Export Ltd,
 Mevish Export Ltd,India   
 Charack Pvt Ltd
 Deva Export Ltd.

 East
 John Medicals
 Okwytex Interna�onal Concept Limited
 Grams Pharmacy
 Peton Investment (Nig) Limited
 Ifytex-xeejay Services Limited

 North
 Gozeb Pharceu�cals Nig. Limited
 Newhealth Pharmacy
 Ifeanyi Health Pharmaceu�cal Ltd.
 Klen Pharmacy Limited
 Skylark Pharm Limited

 Local Suppliers
 Libra Circle Ltd
 Knightsbridge Ltd
 Sankil Pharm Ltd
 Benchmark Sciences Ltd
 Fiyique Ventures Ltd
 Plural Dynamics
 Bates Pharm Ltd
 Sab Nigeria Ltd
 Micabolad Global Investment
 Caxtonjoe Nig Ltd
 Imtor Limited
 Dowell Resources & Logis�cs Ltd

Turnover
Profit a�er tax
Earning per share

14,062,015   16,229,903
     407,188        (97,447)
     20 kobo         (6 kobo)

2019 2018



8.0  DIRECTORS     
 The names of the Directors at the date of this report and of those who held office during the year are as 

follows:
 Mr. Olusegun Adebanji  Chairman    
 Dr. Fidelis A. Ayebae  Managing Director/Chief Execu�ve Officer    
 Mrs. Olufunmilola O. Ayebae Non-Execu�ve    
 Mr. Olugbenga O. Olayeye  Execu�ve    
 Mr. Abiola A. Adebayo  Execu�ve    
 Mr. Emmanuel E. Imoagene  Non-Execu�ve    
 Mrs. Aisha P. Sadauki  Non- Execu�ve    
 Ms. Mabel Ndagi   Non-Execu�ve (Re�red 26/09/2019)

9.0  DIRECTORS' INTERESTS
 The directors' interests in the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2019 are as follows:

19

2019 Annual Reports & Accounts

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (cont’d.) 

10.0  BOARD OF DIRECTORS     
 In accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 259 of the Companies & Allied Ma�ers Act, CAP C20, Laws of the  

Federa�on of Nigeria, 2004 one third of the Directors of the Company shall re�re from office. The directors to 
re�re every year shall be those who have been longest in office since their last elec�on. Accordingly, Mr. 
Olusegun Adebanji, Mrs. Olufunmilola O. Ayebae and Mr. Olugbenga Olayeye re�red by rota�on and being 
eligible, offer themselves for re-elec�on.     

11.0 DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN CONTRACTS     
 None of the Directors has no�fied the Company for the purpose of Sec�on 277 of the Companies and Allied 

Ma�ers Act, CAP C20, Laws of the Federa�on of Nigeria of any disclosable interest in contracts with which the 
Company is involved as at 31 December 2019.  

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019



12.0  SUBSTANTIAL INTEREST IN SHARES    
The registrar has advised that according to the register of members as at 31 December 2019, the following held 
more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company:
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13.0  CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES    
The company made contribu�ons as part of its corporate social responsibility. The beneficiaries are as follows:

14.0  EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
As stated in Note 44, no material events have occurred between the end of the repor�ng period and the date of this 
report which could have had a material effect on the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 December 2019.  
       
15.0  ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDERS     
Analysis of shareholdings as at 31 December 2019

16.0  EMPLOYMENT AND EMPLOYEES
a. Employment of disabled Persons    
 It is the Company's policy that there is no discrimina�on in considering applica�ons for employment including 

those from disabled persons. All employees whether or not disabled are given equal opportuni�es to develop 
their exper�se and knowledge and to qualify for promo�on in furtherance of their careers.  As at 31 
December 2019 there was one disabled employee working in the administra�ve sec�on of the factory.

B. Welfare   
 The company has retainership agreement with a number of private hospitals to whom cases of illness are 

referred for treatment and/or admission.
 The company provides subsidy to employees in respect of transporta�on, lunch, housing and healthcare. 

Incen�ve schemes designed to meet the circumstances of each individual are implemented wherever 
appropriate and some of these schemes include bonus, promo�ons and wage review.

Aside from the shareholders listed above, no other shareholder or ins�tu�on has 5% or more holding in the 
company

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019



C. Training
The company a�aches great importance to training and all categories of staff a�end courses or seminars as 
considered necessary by the Company's management.   

17.0  AUDIT COMMITTEE
Pursuant to Sec�on 359(4) of the Companies and Allied Ma�ers Act, CAP C20, Laws of the Federa�on of Nigeria 
2004, the Company has in place an Audit Commi�ee comprising of Directors and shareholders, namely:
 
 Chief Ma�hew Akinlade  Chairman   
 Alhaji Abdulkabir Sarumi,  Shareholders' representa�ve  
 Mr. Solomon S. Akinsanya  Shareholders' representa�ve   
 Mrs. Olufunmilola O. Ayebae Directors' representa�ve  
 Mrs. Aisha P. Sadauki  Directors' representa�ve  
 Mr. Emmanuel E. Imoagene  Directors' representa�ve  

The func�ons of the Audit Commi�ee are laid down in Sec�on 359(6) of the Companies and Allied Ma�ers Act, 
CAPC20, Laws of Federa�on of Nigeria 2004.
   
18.0  AUDITORS 
Messrs Deloi�e and Touche (Chartered Accountants) have indicated their willingness to con�nue in office in   
accordance with sec�on 357 (2) of the Companies and Allied Ma�ers Act, 1990 Nigeria

   
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD    

 
J. ABAYOMI ADEBANJO, FCIS    
COMPANY SECRETARY    
FRC/2013/ICSAN/00000002161    
26 March 2020    
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We hinge this report on enhanced disclosure as 
required by Principle 28 of the Nigerian Code of 
Corporate Governance and the provisions of the Lis�ng 
Rules par�cularly Rule 17.5 and other rules of the 
exchange bothering of transparency and effec�ve 
communica�on with stakeholders and the inves�ng 
public.  Good governance and fair-trade prac�ces 
remain at the heart of our business ac�vi�es.  In this 
report, reviews were made to exis�ng principles where 
necessary while sustaining them, namely:

People:  Our stakeholders are at the center of our 
Corporate Governance prac�ces. Demands of our 
stakeholders whether directly or indirectly impac�ng 
our opera�ons are constantly considered and 
promptly a�ended to.  In this area of our opera�ons 
are robust Corporate Social Responsibility policies, 
remunera�on and mo�va�on schemes that are second 
to none in the industry and concern for our end users.
We realize that our shareholders are important, and all 
efforts were made throughout the year to reach out to 
them in a bid to ensure an amicable shareholder-
management rela�onship. Aside from the statutory 
register of members, we created a directory of notable 
members for the purposes of engagement and 
opera�onal repor�ng whenever the need arises.

Prices:  Our pricing policies are geared towards 
op�mizing our resources for con�nued growth and 
development without exploi�ng the market.  We have 
con�nued to consider the general infla�onary trend 
and affordability to the common man before arriving at 
our prices.

Planet:  Because we value life, our opera�ons are 
conducted in a way that minimizes nega�ve 
externali�es.  At the heart of this is our robust policy on 
Health, Safety, and Environment (HSE).  We conducted 
regular HSE training throughout the year in addi�on to 
appoin�ng Safety Officers in each of our loca�ons and 
the Office. Obsolete equipment is disposed of in order 
to allow for recycling.  Expired drugs are also destroyed 
under the supervision of regulators and each �me this 
is done a Cer�ficate of Destruc�on is received from the 
relevant Government Agency.  We have imbibed best 
prac�ces and ethical standards in all our dealings. 

Probity:  We reviewed our governance principles and 
we imbibed the 'probity' as one of the essen�als of 
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good governance.  All officers, including directors, are 
requested to give an honest account of all company 
resources in their custody as and when due.

In addi�on to the above, we have strengthened our risk 
management team and the general prac�ce of risk 
awareness and control consciousness company-wide.

OUR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PLATFORM
Our corporate governance strategy and ini�a�ves are 
geared towards complying with the Nigerian Code of 
Corporate Governance 2018 and maintaining an 
amicable rela�onship with the various stakeholders on 
which our con�nued existence relies.  Our second 
approach to Corporate Governance is to use the 
doctrines of good governance to engender the 
sustainability of our business.

We have con�nued to subject our opera�ons to 
periodic examina�ons and audits by independent 
auditors which include current Good Manufacturing 
Prac�ce (GMP) and Na�onal Agency for Food and 
Drugs Administra�on and Control (NAFDAC).  Each 
audit/examina�on report is made the subject for 
considera�on by a commi�ee headed by an execu�ve 
director for proper review and implementa�on.

Overseen by the Board of Directors, corporate 
governance prac�ces are constantly under review in 
line with the dynamics of the business environment.  
The Corporate Governance policies adopted by the 
Board of Directors are designed to ensure that the 
company's business is conducted in a fair, honest and 
transparent manner that conforms to high ethical 
standards.

The day-to-day affairs of the company are run by the 
Execu�ve Management with regular mee�ngs to 
brainstorm on the company's opera�ons and to also 
give departmental reports for reviews.

The framework for our corporate governance is hinged on:
1. The Nigerian Code of Corporate Governance 

2018
2. Various Standard Opera�ons Procedure (SOP) 

and the Interna�onal Standard Organisa�on's 
compliance   requirements

3. Provisions of the Companies and Allied Ma�ers 
Act, 2004

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019



4. Financial Repor�ng Council Act, 2011
5 Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards (IFRS)
6. The lis�ng rules of the Nigerian Stock Exchange 
7. Rules of the Securi�es and Exchange Commission.
8. Good Manufacturing Prac�ce. 
9. Interna�onal best prac�ces.

BOARD COMMITTEES 
Board commi�ees during the year under review were cons�tuted as follows:

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to all Board commi�ees.
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COMMITTEES' TERMS OF REFERENCE

The terms of reference for all the commi�ees are in 
line with the provisions of the Nigerian Code of 
Corporate Governance 2018 and generally accepted 
best prac�ces.  The Commi�ee's terms of reference, in 
summary, are as follows:

1. Nomina�on Commi�ee: The commi�ee's main 
responsibility is to assist the Board in developing 
policies to fill any vacancy on the board, however, 
occasioned and to ensure at all �mes that 

competence gaps are closed so that the company 
is not short of the required skills.

 In doing this, the commi�ee considers the need 
to a�ract, mo�vate and retain suitably qualified 
individuals to the Board.

2. Remunera�on and Governance Commi�ee: The 
responsibility of the commi�ee is mainly to 
recommend a compe��ve remunera�on 
package for the execu�ve management and the 
Board.  
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 In doing this, the commi�ee considers the need 
to maintain both internal  and external 
compe��veness.  It is also the responsibility of 
the commi�ee to ensure that remunera�ons 
paid to the employees of the company are 
adequate and commensurate with performance.

3. Finance and General Purposes Commi�ee: The 
commi�ee assists the Board in ensuring that the 
company's strategic ini�a�ves and objec�ves are 
translated into ac�ons and processes. In doing 
this, the commi�ee considers and makes 
recommenda�ons to the Board with regards to:-

 (a)  the annual es�mates of revenue and expenditure 
(income statement).

(b) capital expenditure requirements including 
loans.

(c)   investment and borrowing policies

(d)  to make a recommenda�on to the board with 
regard to the framework for the Company's 
strategic plan.

(e) to consider the dra� strategic plan prior to 
submission to the Board.

(f) To consider any other ma�ers referred to the 
Commi�ee by the Company.

4. R i s k  M a n a ge m e nt  a n d  C re d i t  C o nt ro l 
Commi�ee: The commi�ee assists the Board in 
the monitoring, reviewing and administra�on of 
the credit policy and risk management.  Its terms 
of reference include the following: 

i. Consider the nature, extent, and categories of the 
risks facing the Company, and the likelihood of 
such risks materializing, the Company's ability to 
reduce the incidence and the impact on its 
business, if the risks do materialize.

ii. Advise the Board on the cost of opera�ng 
par�cular controls rela�ve to the benefits 
thereby obtained in managing the related risks;

iii. Ensure that the Company's policy on ethics 
adequately impacts posi�vely on its Business 
partners and stakeholders e.g. Customers, 
Shareholders,  Community,  Government, 
Suppliers and the public;

iv. Prescribe new standards and mechanisms related 
to ethics and make the recommenda�ons to the 
Board.

v. Review the risk register and to no�fy the Board of 
changes in the status and control evalua�on of 
risks;

vi. Keep under review and monitor the effec�veness 
of the Company's system of internal control, non-
financial ac�vi�es of management, including 
opera�onal and compliance controls and risk 
management, environment, health and safety 
and report to the Board on annual basis and;

vii. Monitor compliance with the provisions of the 
Companies and Allied Ma�ers Act as they affect 
the opera�ons of the business and adherence to 
the rules and regula�ons of relevant regulatory 
bodies.  

 
viii. To obtain Board approval for any policy changes, 

ac�ons or decisions of the Commi�ee that 
require such approval.  The communica�on path 
shall be through the Company Secretary and/or 
the Chairman.

ix. The Commi�ee shall be responsible for pu�ng in 
place a structure for risk management.

x. To review the implementa�on of the company's 
processes as they relate to risk management 
framework and recommend best prac�ce.

xi. To consider the likely impact on breaches in the 
company's opera�ons.

xii. To put in place a Business Con�nuity Plan (BCP) 
for the company. 

These commi�ees meet on a regular basis to discharge 
their func�ons and report to the Board.

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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THE BOARD
Frequency of mee�ngs:

The Board of Directors holds at least 4 (four) mee�ngs 
in each financial year.  Each mee�ng is scheduled to 
receive quarterly opera�ng results among other 
reports on the company's opera�ons.   All ma�ers 
reserved for the Board are duly considered and 
resolved.  These include considera�on and approval of 
budgets, major capital expenditures, corporate 
strategy, review of policies on internal r isk 
management, review of performance and generally 
direct the affairs of the company's opera�ons.

A�endance at Board mee�ngs during the year under 
review was impressive.  In line with Sec�on 258 (2) of 
the Companies and Allied Ma�ers Act, CAP C20 LFN 
2004, the record of Director's a�endance at Board 
mee�ngs is available at the annual general mee�ng for 
inspec�on.

Responsibili�es of the Board of Directors:

It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to:

1. ensure that the company's opera�ons are 
conducted in a fair and transparent manner that 
conforms with high ethical standards;

2. ensure the integrity of the company's financial 
and internal control policies;

3. ensure the accuracy, adequacy and �mely 
rendi�on of the statutory returns and financial 
reports to the regulatory authori�es, namely, The 
Nigerian Stock Exchange (NSE), Securi�es and 
Exchange Commission (SEC), Corporate Affairs 
Commission (CAC), Na�onal Agency for Food and 
Drug Administra�on and Control (NAFDAC) and 
shareholders through the Company Secretary;

4. ensure value crea�on for the shareholders, 
employees and other stakeholders;

5. review and approve corporate policies, 
strategies, annual budgets and business plans;

6. monitor implementa�on of policies and strategic 
direc�on of the company;

7. s e t  p e r f o r m a n c e  o b j e c � v e s ,  m o n i t o r 
implementa�on and corporate performance;

8. review and approve all major capital expenditure 
of the company;

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019

9. ensure that the statutory rights of all stakeholders 
are protected at all �mes; and, ins�tute an 
appropr iate  mechanism for  measur ing 
adherence by management to all regula�ons.

Informa�on flow to the Board:   The execu�ve 
management ensures that the board received 
adequate informa�on on a �mely basis.  Board papers 
are circulated at least two weeks before every board 
mee�ng.

As part of the Board's resolve to ensure adequate 
compliance with and to engender good corporate 
governance, at every board mee�ng Corporate 
Governance Report is presented by the Company 
Secretary for considera�on by the Board.  This way, the 
Board is abreast of the regulatory, statutory and ethical 
requirements expected of listed companies in Nigeria.

Board Charter:   In order to ensure good governance is 
engendered in the company, the Board is run by a 
Charter which amongst other things make provisions 
concerning:

a) Frequency of Board mee�ngs
b) Process for adop�on and circula�on of board 

minutes
c) Disclosure of interest
d) Guidelines for ensuring the integrity and 

independence of directors.
e) Commitment to comply with the Corporate 

Governance Code

Board Structure:  The Board is currently made up of 7 
(seven) directors. A majority (4) of them are non-
execu�ve directors amongst whom is an independent 
director.  The structure has engendered a culture of 
objec�ve assessment and a balanced view on the 
board on every issue brought up for discussion. 

In structuring the board, there was considera�on for 
diversity in terms of gender and core competencies of 
individual directors, hence there are three women 
and five men on the board. Among the board 
members are experts in Human Resources, corporate 
governance, medical sciences, finance, agriculture 
and banking.
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Board evalua�on and appraisal: The board has 
decided to conduct an evalua�on of its members 
before the end of the 2019 financial year.

Related party transac�on: Though the shareholders 
gave an an�cipatory approval at the last annual general 
mee�ng, there was no material related party 
transac�on throughout the year under review.

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
In accordance with sec�on 359 (4) of the Companies 
and Allied Ma�ers Act, Cap C20 LFN 2004, the audit 

Directors during the year under review were:
1. Mr. O. S. Adebanji   -  Appointed 1st of January 2018 (Chairman)
2. Dr. Fidelis A. Ayebae  - Managing Director/Chief Execu�ve Officer
3. Mr. Emmanuel E. Imoagene - Non-Execu�ve Director
4. Mrs. Oluwafunmilola O. Ayebae - Non-Execu�ve Director
5. Mrs. Aishatu P. Sadauki  - Non-Execu�ve Director
6. Mr. Olugbenga O. Olayeye  - Execu�ve Director, Sales and Marke�ng
7. Mr. Abiola A. Adebayo  - Execu�ve Director, Opera�ons.

1. Chief Ma�hew Akinlade   Shareholder - Chairman (reappointed at the 20th AGM)
2. Alhaji Abdulkabir B Sarumi  Shareholder 
3. Mr. Solomon S Akinsanya  Shareholder
4. Mrs. Olufunmilola O. Ayebae Director
5. Mrs. A. P. Sadauki   Director 
6. Mr. Emmanuel E. Imoagene  Director

A�endance of Board Members, Board Commi�ees and Audit Commi�ee at mee�ngs during the twelve Months 
Ended 31st December 2019

commi�ee is made up of six (6) members, three 
representa�ves of the shareholders and three 
representa�ves of the Board of directors.

Members of the audit commi�ee are elected at the 
annual general mee�ng.  The commi�ee was engaged 
maximally in all aspects of its responsibility as 
s�pulated by the law.  In addi�on, the commi�ee was 
encouraged to take on other assignments that may be 
of benefit to the company.  
Members of the commi�ee during the year under 
review were:
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (cont’d.)

Dealing In Securi�es By Insiders
The company directors are constantly reminded and 
they are aware of the restric�ons imposed on them 
with regards to trading in the shares of the company 
during closed periods.  The policy in place is obeyed by 
the directors and other senior employees who by 
virtue of their posi�on constantly come in contact with 
price-sensi�ve informa�on.

Therefore, in compliance with Rule 17.5 of the Lis�ng 
Rules of the Nigerian Stock Exchange, it is hereby stated 
that: 

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019

(I) Fidson Healthcare Plc has a code of conduct 
regarding securi�es transac�on by its Directors. This is 
contained in the adopted Board Charter.

(ii) Specific enquiries have been made and none of the 
directors violated the rules rela�ng to Insider trading 
during the 4th Quarter being reported.

Enquiries have been made and it is hereby stated that 
in respect of these financial statements and the interim 
accounts submi�ed in the course of the year under 

43

86
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (cont’d.)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019

review none of the directors violated the rules rela�ng 
to securi�es trading. 

Payment of penalty:
The company paid no penalty to the Nigerian Stock 
Exchange during the year under review 

Compliance with the code of corporate governance:
The Company complied with the 2018 Code of 
Corporate Governance for public companies during 
the year under review.  Detailed explana�ons were 
given in the annual corporate governance return 
(Form SEC 1) made to the Securi�es and Exchange 
Commission. 

The complaints management policy of the company
The company has in place a policy document on 
complaints management to support the exis�ng 
policies dealing with allied ma�ers.

____________________________
J. Abayomi Adebanjo, FCIS       
Company Secretary       
FRC/2013/ICSAN/00000002161       
25 March 2020
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE 

PREPARATION AND APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of Fidson Healthcare Plc are responsible for the prepara�on of the financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the financial posi�on of the Company as at 31 December 2019, and the results of its opera�ons, 
cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended, in compliance with Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng 
Standards ("IFRS") and in the manner required by the Companies and Allied Ma�ers Act of Nigeria, and the 
Financial Repor�ng Council of Nigeria Act, 2011.
  
In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for:
   
 properly selec�ng and applying accoun�ng policies.
 presen�ng informa�on, including accoun�ng policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, 

comparable and understandable informa�on. 
 providing addi�onal disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to 

enable users to understand the impact of par�cular transac�ons, other events and condi�ons on the 
Company's financial posi�on and financial performance; and 

 assessing the Company's ability to con�nue as a going concern.
 designing, implemen�ng and maintaining an effec�ve and sound system of internal controls throughout the 

Company.
 maintaining adequate accoun�ng records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transac�ons 

and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any �me the financial posi�on of the Company, and which enable 
them to ensure that the financial statements of the Company comply with IFRS;

 maintaining statutory accoun�ng records in compliance with the legisla�on of Nigeria and IFRS.
 taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Company; and
 preven�ng and detec�ng fraud and other irregulari�es.

Going Concern:
The Directors have made an assessment of the Company's ability to con�nue as a going concern and have no reason 
to believe the Company will not remain a going concern in the year ahead.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 were approved by the directors on 
26 March, 2020.

On behalf of the Directors of the Company

______________________________  ____________________________
Abiola Adebayo      Fidelis Ayebae
Director      MD/CEO
FRC/2013/PSNIG/00000002162    FRC/2014/CIANG/00000002376

 26 March 2020      26 March 2020

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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In the course of the financial year 2019, the statutory Audit Commi�ee of Fidson Healthcare Plc met four �mes as 
illustrated in the table below. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE'S REPORT  

Our terms of reference include but are not limited to the following:

1  Assist in the oversight of the integrity of Fidson Healthcare Plc (“the Company”) financial statements, 
compliance with legal and other regulatory requirement, assessment of qualifica�ons and independence of 
external auditor, and performance of the company's internal audit func�ons well as that of external auditors;

2  Ensure the development of a comprehensive internal control framework for the Company, obtains assurance 
and report annually in the financial report, on the opera�ng effec�veness of the Company's internal 
framework;

3  Oversee management's process for the iden�fica�on of significant fraud risks across the Company and ensure 
that adequate preven�on, detec�on and repor�ng mechanism are in place;

4  Discuss the annual audited financial statements with management and external auditors;
5  Discuss policies and strategies in respect to risk assessment and management;
6  Review and ensure that adequate whistle blowing procedures are in place and that a summary of issues 

reported are highlighted to the Chairman;   
7  Review, with the external auditor, any audit scope limita�ons or problems encountered and management 

responses to same. In addi�on, to review the independence of external auditors and ensure that where non- 
audit services are provided by the external auditors, there is no conflict of interest;

8  Preserve auditor independence, by se�ng clear hiring policies for employees or former employees of 
independent auditors;

9  Invoke its authority to inves�gate ant ma�er within its terms of reference for which purpose the Company 
must make available the resources to the internal auditors with which to carry out these func�ons, including 
access to external advice where necessary.        

Consequently, in accordance with the provisions of sec�on 359(6) of the Companies and Allied Ma�ers Act, Cap 
C20, Laws of the Federa�on of Nigeria 2004, the members of the statutory Audit commi�ee of Fidson Healthcare 
Plc hereby report that we have exercised our statutory func�ons under this act and we acknowledge the 
coopera�on of the Management and staff of the conduct of these responsibili�es.

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019

75
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Specifically, we confirm that:
     
1  The accoun�ng and repor�ng policies of the company are consistent with the legal requirements and ethical  

prac�ces.

2  The internal audit programmes are extensive and provide a sa�sfactory evalua�on of the efficiency of the 
internal controls systems; and

3  We have considered the independent auditor's post audit report and management responses thereon, and 
are sa�sfied with responses to our ques�on as well as the state of Fidson Healthcare Plc. 

Chief Ma�hew Akinlade, FCA      
FRC2013/ICAN/00000002111      
Chairman      
Statutory Audit Commi�ee      
      
Dated  25 March 2020      

Members of the Statutory Audit Commi�ee are:      

Chief Ma�hew Akinlade, FCA  Shareholder representa�ve (Chairman)    
Alhaji Abdulkabir Sarumi,  Shareholders' representa�ve    
Mr. Solomon S. Akinsanya  Shareholders' representa�ve    
Mrs. Olufunmilola O. Ayebae  Directors' representa�ve    
Mrs. Aisha P. Sadauki   Directors' representa�ve    
Mr. Emmanuel E. Imoagene  Directors' representa�ve    

AUDIT COMMITTEE'S REPORT (cont’d.) 

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019



FOR EFFECTIVE RELIEF FROM SNEEZING, RUNNING NOSE, 
INSECT BITE, SKIN, FOOD AND OTHER ALLERGIES.

Tablets/Syrup

  
HISTIN
Chlorpheniramine Maleate 

® 

HISTIN is a brand of Chlorpheniramine maleate.

It is indicated for the relief of symptoms of allergies such as hay 
fever, pet allergies, nettle rash (urticaria), food allergies and reactions 

to insect bites or some medicines. 

It is also used to treat the symptoms of a more serious allergic 
reaction called angioneurotic edema, which causes swelling of the 
eyes, lips, tongue or throat Itching associated with chickenpox and 

side effect of some medicines.
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From incep�on �ll date, Fidson Healthcare Plc has le� 
no stone unturned in her passionate pursuit of adding 
value to lives through the delivery of quality healthcare 
products and services to Nigerians.

This art of love for humanity is essen�ally the basis of 
our existence as a healthcare organiza�on. For over 
two decades of existence, our passion for humanity has 
been our driving force in the way we go about our 
business; manufacturing and marke�ng of quality 
pharmaceu�cal products. This is embedded in our 
vision and mission statements, as well as our corporate 
slogan” we value life”. 
 
In the same vein, even in the phase of harsh economic 
reali�es, we remain undaunted in our commitment 
towards allevia�ng the pains and enriching the lives of 
Nigerians through our various Corporate Social 
Responsibility ini�a�ves. Our love and passion for 
humanity remained unwavering in suppor�ng the 
na�ons' healthcare. Our CSR focus on the less 
privileged children's educa�on and wellbeing, caring 
for the vulnerable ones in our immediate communi�es 
and ensuring the ac�vi�es of our business does not in 
any way endanger our environment. In addi�on to 
these ini�a�ves, in 2018, Fidson took a bold decision to 
reinforce commitment to adding value to the lives of 
Nigerians. This �me, the company adopted a 
dis�nc�ve corporate sustainability approach that 
focused on the impacts of our opera�ons on the 
immediate environment in line with the United Na�on 
Sustainable Development Goal 12 which focuses on 
Responsible Produc�on and Consump�on as well as 
Goal 15 which focuses on the Environment. 
 
The company's efforts towards achieving this goals is 
evident in the recent Environmental Management 
System (EMS) cer�fica�on, which was presented to the 
organiza�on based on our compliance with the 
Interna�onal Organiza�on for Standardiza�on (ISO) 
14001:2015, the world's most widely recognized 
standard for Environmental Management Systems 
which minimizes the impact of its opera�ons, 
ac�vi�es, products and services on the environment. 
 
Fidson's commitment to maintain the EMS standards, 
is not only to enhance our environmental performance 
and manage legal compliance with environmental 
responsibili�es, but also to set the pace for other 

manufacturing companies by demonstra�ng our 
commitment to humanity and environmental 
preserva�on in a society where organiza�ons and even 
the ci�zens pay less a�en�on to the impact of their 
opera�ons and ac�vi�es on the environment. In 2019, 
we con�nued in adop�ng current technological 
advancements in the con�nuous improvement of this 
cause. 

FIDSON GRANTS TO CHILDREN EMERGENCY 
RELIEF FOUNDATION (CERF) 

In 2019, we con�nued our partnership with Children 
Emergency Relief Founda�on (CERF, with scholarship 
support by Fidson to pupils as well as health 
interven�on programmes to other indigents of the 
Ikorodu community and other rural communi�es in 
Lagos and Ogun State. It will amaze you to know that a 
sizeable number of these vulnerable children 
supported with Scholarship fund for their Primary and 
Secondary educa�on through the Founda�on are 
doing so well and matricula�ng into higher ins�tu�ons 
of learning. We can inform you with evidences that 
these grants and dona�ons over the years is not a 
waste as we see these children growing into adulthood 
while a�aining the required and desired educa�onal 
heights. 
 
Fidson also partners with CERF, this faith-based  non-
governmental organiza�on commi�ed to the survival, 
protec�on, welfare, rights, relief and support of 
vulnerable children and by extension, their caregivers 
through outreaches and sensi�za�on programmes. 
This year, the founda�on in collabora�on with Fidson 
had several events and outreaches. One of such event 
was the sensi�za�on of children and parents on the 
event of the Interna�onal Day of the Girl Child held at 
the Living Legacy School, Ita-Oluwo and Christ Army 
Academy respec�vely, where young girls were 

FIDSON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY  REPORT

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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sensi�zed on self-awareness, while promo�ng girls' 
empowerment and the fulfilment of their dreams as it 
is the believe of the founda�on to catch them young. 
 

FIDSON DONATIONS TO SUPPORT CHILDREN 
DEVELOPMENTAL CENTRE (CDC)  
In the year 2019, Fidson con�nued in her commitment 
to extending helping hands to CDC by way of funds 
dona�on to bring succor to the lives of the special 
needs children at the Children Developmental Centre.  
The company made financial dona�ons for the 
purchase of Mobile Chairs, Accessories for Mobile 
Dental Clinic, Trampoline with net for the purpose of 
recrea�onal ac�vi�es for the children at the Centre and 
as well as the renova�on of structural facili�es at the 
Centre as part of its Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) Program. 
  
Children Developmental Centre is a safe home where 
Au�s�c and Down Syndrome children are well catered 
for and strongly empowered to achieve remarkable 
feats with all needed support, love, and a�en�on by 
professional and passionate care givers. This is the 
reason Fidson Healthcare Plc has and will con�nue to 
support by way of funds and drugs dona�ons, while 
encouraging the Centre and the children to achieve 
their poten�als even in their disabili�es. 
  
Ms. Ebelle Oputa, Director of Service at the Centre 
expressed gra�tude on behalf of the Children and 
Management of the Centre to Fidson Healthcare Plc for 
the unwavering support for the Children in the past 
years and con�nued moral and financial commitments 
to the Centre in catering for various aspects of the 
children's growth and development. 
 

FIDSON DONATIONS TO PACELLI SCHOOL FOR 
THE BLIND  AND DEMONSTRATION SCHOOL 
FOR THE DEAF CHILDREN
Pacelli School for the Blind and Par�ally Sighted 
(PSBPS) remains one of Fidson's major special needs 
CSR beneficiary Ins�tu�ons.  The school is also a non-
governmental and non-fee-paying ins�tu�on, for 
visually impaired children. On yearly basis, Fidson 
supports the school through financial dona�ons 
towards the funding of the pupils' educa�on, 
maintenance of facili�es, as well as the welfare of the 
students. 

Fidson also supports the Demonstra�on School for the 
Deaf Children (DSDC), a non-profit organisa�on that is 
dedicated to ensuring that this category of special 
needs children receive suitable educa�on for self-
reliant futures. The company's support come in the 
form of dona�on of several products with which the 
school equipped its first aid boxes as part of our effort 
to ensure the availability and accessibility of medical 
treatment when required.

ASTYMIN BRILLIANCE REWARD(ABR) CSR-
INITIATIVE 
The programme, which berthed in 2010, is aimed at 
developing mental and academic performance, while 
rewarding hard work and academic excellence 
amongst Primary School pupils, through special 
acknowledgment and provision of educa�onal 
materials.

As customary of the programme, this year's edi�on 
witnessed the convergence of the very best gradua�ng 
pupils from over two hundred private and public 
schools across the south-west and South-east regions 
and were celebrated and rewarded with educa�onal 
materials that will help them in their next level of study 
for a brighter future.

In line with the corporate brand promise of adding 
value to the lives of Nigerians as expressed in our 
slogan…we value life, ABR is our a�empt to bring back 
the glory days of our educa�on by throwing our weight 
behind the children's drive for academic excellence.  
We believe it is be�er to catch them young and put 
them on the right path to success. Therefore, Fidson 
with her Astymin themed ini�a�ve, will con�nue to 
take the giant stride in rewarding brilliant primary 
school kids in a way that will mo�vate them to stay 

FIDSON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY  REPORT (cont’d.)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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focused on their studies, believing that merit and hard 
work can s�ll be rewarded.  

FIDSON END MALARIA FOR GOOD SOCIAL 
MEDIA CAMPAIGN AND PROJECT HELP 
INITIATIVE 
According to the Federal Ministry of Health, Nigeria 
suffers the world's greatest malaria burden, which is 
approximately 51 million cases and 207,000 deaths 
reported annually. That is approximately 30% of the 
total malaria burden in Africa. In case you do not know, 
97% of the total popula�on, approximately 173 million 
people are at risk of malaria infec�on.

Fidson joined the world Health Organiza�on and other 
health and corporate bodies in the fight against malaria 
in the year in view as it has been our culture over the 
years, in educa�ng and sensi�zing the public on the 
dangers of malaria and its preven�on and treatment.

As you may know, the power of social media cannot be 
over emphasized, especially in reaching our todays' 
youth with the right content and message to help them 
make life saving decisions. This we leveraged on in the 
fight against malaria by running a social media 
campaign to further sensi�ze the public on the dangers 
of malaria and how to prevent it. In order to make it 
more exci�ng and to further drive home the message, 
we created this simple and par�cipatory contest where 
we instructed the public to make videos of themselves 
to say, ''End Malaria for Good'' in their na�ve language 
while telling the public what they do to prevent 
malaria.

They were asked to upload the videos to their social 
media pla�orms, tagging their friends and loved ones 
to do the same, like and share the video to win prizes. 
Nigeria is a na�on blessed with several tribes and 
tongues, this campaign went viral across the na�on as 
Nigerians, both young and old jumped on it and made 
the message viral.

As an indigenous healthcare company, Fidson 
Healthcare Plc will con�nue to do all the above and 
more in her commitment to adding value to the lives of 
Nigerians. 

 

PROJECT HELP CSR INITIATIVE
As part of our CSR ini�a�ve at Fidson, we are 
commi�ed to ensuring that essen�al healthcare 
solu�ons remain affordable and widely available for 
today and future genera�ons of Nigerians. We think 
radically and u�lize technological innova�ons and 
processes that conform to global best prac�ces to add 
this value to humanity.

Through the company's Project HELP ini�a�ve – Health 
Essen�als Low Prices, over 25 new products were 
introduced in different therapeu�c areas and across all 
product lines in 2018, focusing on addressing the needs 
of the low-income demography of consumer market. 
These includes facili�es for seven produc�on lines: 
small and large volume parenterals of intravenous (IV) 
fluids, tablets, capsules, liquids, cream/ointments, and 
dry powder. Within the company's produc�on lines are 
products targe�ng specific therapeu�c areas including 
an�-infec�on, gastro-intes�nal, an�-retroviral, an�-
malarial, cardiovascular, analgesic, hema�nic, and 
supplementa�on products. IV fluids are some of the 
company's new products and the product group 
posi�ons this company to strategically bridge the 
supply gap and high demand in the infusion products 
sub-market.

The present posi�on of the country's pharmaceu�cal 
industry requires such investments as its new plant to 
meet future healthcare demands of Nigerians with the 
new factory's poten�al being harnessed, the company 
is assured of a compe��ve edge that will not only see it 
deliver be�er quality and more affordable medicines, it 
will also generate more employment, increase local 
content.

Fidson's Corporate Social Responsibility has been 
playing a significant role in fulfilling the children's 
educa�onal goals and aspira�ons as hundreds of 
children and rehabilita�on students from both schools 
con�nue to graduate and move on to higher 
ins�tu�ons of learning.

FIDSON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY  REPORT (cont’d.)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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Independent Auditor's report 

To the Shareholders of Fidson Healthcare Plc 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Fidson Healthcare Plc which comprise the statement of financial posi�on 
as at 31 December 2019, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement 
of cash flows for the year then ended and the notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant accoun�ng policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial posi�on of Fidson Healthcare Plc as at 31 December 
2019 and the financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng 
Standards, the Companies and Allied Ma�ers Act Cap C20 LFN 2004 and the Financial Repor�ng Council of Nigeria Act, 2011.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Interna�onal Standards on Audi�ng (ISAs). Our responsibili�es under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements sec�on of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the requirements of the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria Professional Code of 
Conduct and Guide for Accountants (ICAN Code) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial 
statements in Nigeria. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with the ICAN Code and in accordance with 
other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in Nigeria. The ICAN Code is consistent with the Interna�onal Ethics 
Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts A and B). We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Ma�ers

Key audit ma�ers are the ma�ers that, in our professional judgment, was of most significance in our audit of the financial statements 

of the current year. These ma�ers were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these ma�ers.

Deloitte & Touche
Civic Towers
Plot GA 1, Ozumba Mbadiwe Avenue
Victoria Island
P.O.Box 965, Marina
Lagos
Tel:  +234 (1) 904 1700
www.deloitte.com.ng
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Other Informa�on
The directors are responsible for the other informa�on. The other informa�on comprises the Directors' Report, Audit Commi�ee's 
Report, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report. The other informa�on does not include the financial statements 
and our auditor's report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. 

In connec�on with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informa�on and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

Based on the work we have performed on the other informa�on that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, if we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informa�on, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard.

Responsibili�es of the Directors for the Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for the prepara�on of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Interna�onal 
Financial Repor�ng Standards and the requirements of the Companies and Allied Ma�ers Act CAP C20 LFN 2004, Financial Repor�ng 
Council Act, 2011 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the prepara�on of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to con�nue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accoun�ng unless the directors either 
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease opera�ons, or have no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibili�es for the Audit of Financial Statements
Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scep�cism throughout the 
audit. We also:

· Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal 
control. 

· Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effec�veness of the Company's internal control. 

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates and related 
disclosures made by the directors. 

· Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists rela�ng to events or condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company's ability to con�nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
a�en�on in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, 
future events or condi�ons may cause the Company to cease to con�nue as a going concern. 

· Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
Company's financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in a manner that achieves fair presenta�on.
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We communicate with the audit commi�ee and the directors regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and �ming of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we iden�fy during our audit.

We also provide the audit commi�ee and directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers that may reasonably be thought to bear 
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the ma�ers communicated with the audit commi�ee and the directors, we determine the ma�er that was of most significance 
in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and is therefore the key audit ma�ers. We describe these ma�ers in our 
auditor's report unless law or regula�on precludes public disclosure about the ma�er or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a ma�er should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the benefits derivable by the public from such communica�on. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
In accordance with the Sixth Schedule of Companies and Allied Ma�ers Act CAP C20 LFN 2004 we expressly state that:

i) We have obtained all the informa�on and explana�on which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purpose of our audit.

ii) The Company has kept proper books of account, so far as appears from our examina�on of those books.
iii) The Company's financial posi�on and its statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are in agreement with 

the books of account and returns.

Chigozie Okoro, FCA- FRC/2013/ICAN/00000004457
For: Deloi�e & Touche       
Chartered Accountants       
Lagos, Nigeria
18 May 2020 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The Notes and accoun�ng policies form an integral part of these financial statements.

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON: 26 MARCH, 2020 
     
 

__________________________  ________________________         __________________________
Fidelis Ayebae     Olakunle Ajayi                 Abiola Adebayo  
Managing Director/CEO   Head, Accoun�ng & Repor�ng   Director  
FRC/2014/CIANG/00000002376               FRC/2018/ICAN/00000018533      FRC/2013/PSNIG/00000002162
 
The notes and the accoun�ng policies form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.0  Corporate informa�on

The company was incorporated as a private limited 
liability Company on 13 March 1995 and commenced 
business ac�vi�es on 15 March 1995. The principal 
ac�vi�es of the Company include manufacturing and 
distribu�on of pharmaceu�cal products. The 
company's shares were quoted the Nigerian Stock 
Exchange on 5 June 2008. The issued share capital is 
held as to 38.86% directly by the Directors, 5.74% 
indirectly by the Directors and 54.94% by the Nigerian 
Public.

1.1 Composi�on of the financial statements
The Financial statements are drawn up in Naira, the 
func�onal currency of Fidson Healthcare Plc. In 
accordance with IFRS accoun�ng presenta�on, the 
Financial Statements comprise:

   · S tatement  of  Profit  or  Loss  and Other 
Comprehensive Income

   · Statement of Financial Posi�on
   · Statement of Changes in Equity
   · Statement of Cash flows 
   ·  Notes to the Financial Statements.

1.2 Financial period
These Financial Statements cover the financial year 
ended 31 December 2019 with compara�ve amounts 
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

2.0  Significant accoun�ng policies

2.1  Basis of prepara�on and measurement
These financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng 
Standards (IFRS) as issued by the Interna�onal 
Accoun�ng Standards Board (IASB).
The financial statements have been prepared on a 
historical cost basis, except for certain available–for-
sale financial assets which have been measured at fair 
value. The financial statements are presented in the 
Nigerian Naira and all values are rounded to the 
nearest thousands (₦'000), except when otherwise 
indicated.

2.2  Summary of significant accoun�ng policies        
The following are the significant accoun�ng policies 

applied by the Company in preparing its financial 
statements:

2.2.1 Current versus non-current classifica�on
The company presents assets and liabili�es in 
statement of financial posi�on based on current/non-
current classifica�on. An asset is current when it is:

· Expected to be realised or intended to sell or 
consumed in normal opera�ng cycle 

· Held primarily for the purpose of trading
· Expected to be realised within twelve months 

a�er the repor�ng period

 Or
· Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from 

being exchanged or used to se�le a liability for at 
least twelve months a�er the repor�ng period

 
 All other assets are classified as non-current.

 A liability is current when:

· It is expected to be se�led in normal opera�ng 
cycle    

· It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
· It is due to be se�led within twelve months a�er 

the repor�ng period

 Or
· There is no uncondi�onal right to defer the 

se�lement of the liability for at least twelve 
months a�er the repor�ng period

 
The company classifies all other liabili�es as non-
current.

Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are classified as non-
current assets and liabili�es.

2.2.2  Fair value measurement        
The company measures some financial instruments 
and non-financial assets at fair value at each repor�ng 
date. Also, fair values of financial instruments 
measured at amor�zed cost are disclosed in Note 41a.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an 
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transac�on between market par�cipants at the 
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measurement date. The fair value measurement is 
based on the presump�on that the transac�on to sell 
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:        

   - In the principal market for the asset or liability, or    
   - In the absence of a principal market, in the most   

advantageous market for the asset or liability         

The principal or the most advantageous market must 
be accessible by the Company.         

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using 
the assump�ons that market par�cipants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that 
market par�cipants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes 
into account a market par�cipant's ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and 
best use or by selling it to another market par�cipant 
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.         

The company uses valua�on techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, 
maximizing the relevant observable inputs and 
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. Refer to 
Note 42b for fair value hierarchy.

2.2.3 Revenue recogni�on         
Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of 
promised goods or services to the customer in an 
amount that reflects the considera�on to which the 
en�ty expects to be en�tled in exchange for those 
goods or services.
Revenue is recognised by applying a five-step 
approach: 
   - Iden�fy the contract    
   - Iden�fy the separate performance obliga�ons in 

the contract
   - Determine the transac�on price
   - Allocate the transac�on price to separate 

performance obliga�ons
   - Re co g n i s e  reve n u e  w h e n  ( o r  a s )  e a c h 

performance obliga�on is 

The Company recognises revenue from the following 
major sources:

   - Sale of Ethical Products
   - Sale of Over the Counter (OTC) products.
   - Sale of Paper Products and Diapers.

Revenue is measured based on the considera�on to 
which the Company expects to be en�tled in a contract 
with a customer and excludes amounts collected on 
behalf of third par�es. The Company recognises 
revenue when it transfers control of a product or 
service to a customer.

Interest income 
For all financial instruments measured at amor�sed 
cost, interest income or expense is recognised using 
the effec�ve interest rate (EIR), which is the rate that 
exactly discounts the es�mated future cash payments 
or receipts through the expected life of the financial 
instrument or a shorter year, where appropriate, to the 
net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. 
Interest income is included in finance income in the 
profit or loss.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised when the Company's right to 
receive the payment is established, which is generally 
when shareholders approve the dividend. 

2.2.4   Government grants
Government grants are recognised where there is 
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, 
and all a�ached condi�ons will be complied with. 
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is 
recognised as income on a systema�c basis over the 
period that the related costs, for which it is intended to 
compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to 
an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts 
over the expected useful life of the related asset. 

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary 
assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair 
value amounts and released to the profit or loss over 
the expected useful life in a pa�ern of consump�on of 
the benefit of the underlying asset by equal annual 
instalments. When loans or similar assistance are 
provided by governments or related ins�tu�ons, with 
an interest rate below the current applicable market 
rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as 
a government grant. The loan or assistance is ini�ally 
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recognised and measured at fair value and the 
government grant is measured as the difference 
between the ini�al carrying value of the loan and the 
proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured 
as per the accoun�ng policy in Note 2.2.12 (ii).

2.2.5 Taxes

Current income tax
The income tax assets or liabili�es for the current year 
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered 
from or paid to the tax authori�es. The tax rates and tax 
laws used to compute the amount are determined in 
accordance with the Companies Income Tax Act (CITA) 
2007 at 30% of total profit a�er deduc�ng capital 
allowances and loss relief. Educa�on tax is also 
assessed at 2% of the assessable profits.

Current income tax rela�ng to items recognised 
outside the profit or loss are recognised outside profit 
or loss.
Management periodically evaluates posi�ons taken in 
the tax returns with respect to situa�ons in which 
applicable tax regula�ons are subject to interpreta�on 
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on 
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets 
and liabili�es and their carrying amounts for financial 
repor�ng purposes at the repor�ng date.

Deferred tax liabili�es are recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences, except:

   · When the deferred tax liability arises from the 
ini�al recogni�on of goodwill or an asset or 
liability in a transac�on that is not a business 
combina�on and, at the �me of the transac�on, 
affects neither the accoun�ng profit nor taxable 
profit or loss.

   · In respect of taxable temporary differences 
associated with investments in subsidiaries, 
associates and interests in joint ventures, when 
the �ming of the reversal of the temporary 
differences can be controlled and it is probable 
that the temporary differences will not reverse in 
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deduc�ble 
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax 
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets 
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against which the 
deduc�ble temporary differences, and the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses 
can be u�lised, except:

   · When the deferred tax asset rela�ng to the 
deduc�ble temporary difference arises from the 
ini�al recogni�on of an asset or liability in a 
transac�on that is not a business combina�on 
and, at the �me of the transac�on, affects neither 
the accoun�ng profit nor taxable profit or loss

   · In respect of deduc�ble temporary differences 
associated with investments in subsidiaries, 
associates and interests in joint ventures, 
deferred tax assets are recognised only to the 
extent that it is probable that

   · the temporary differences will reverse in the 
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be 
available against which the temporary differences 
can be u�lised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed 
at each repor�ng date and reduced to the extent that it 
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will 
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset 
to be u�lised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at 
each repor�ng date and are recognised to the extent 
that it has become probable that future taxable profits 
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are measured at the 
tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when 
the asset is realised or the liability is se�led, based on 
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substan�vely enacted at the repor�ng date.

Deferred tax on items recognised in the profit or loss is 
also recognised in the profit or loss, while deferred tax 
on items recognised outside the profit or loss is also 
recognised outside the profit or loss. 
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The company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred 
tax liabili�es if and only if it has a legally enforceable 
right to set off current tax assets and current tax 
liabili�es and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabili�es relate to income taxes levied by the same tax 
authority on the same taxable en�ty.

Value Added Tax (VAT)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of 
the amount of Value Added Tax (VAT), except:

   · Where the VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or 
services is not recoverable from the taxa�on 
authority, in which case the VAT is recognised as 
part of the cost of acquisi�on of the asset or as 
part of the expense item as applicable.

   · Receivables and payables are stated with the 
amount of VAT included. 

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, 
the tax authority is included as part of receivables or 
payables in the statement of financial posi�on.

2.2.6 Foreign currency transac�on
Foreign currency transac�ons are converted into the 
func�onal currency, the Nigerian Naira at the rate of 
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transac�ons. 
Monetary assets and liabili�es denominated in foreign 
currencies are retranslated at the func�onal currency 
interbank rate of exchange ruling at the repor�ng date 
in accordance with the Central Bank of Nigeria 
guidelines. Any exchange gains or losses arising on 
se�lement or transla�on of monetary items are 
recognised in the profit or loss. Non-monetary items 
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a 
foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rates as at the dates of the ini�al transac�ons.

2.2.7 Property plant and equipment 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of 
purchase or construc�on, net of accumulated 
deprecia�on and/or accumulated impairment loss, if 
any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing 
component parts of the property, plant and equipment 
and borrowing costs for long term projects if the 
recogni�on criteria are met.

When significant parts of property, plant and 
equipment are required to be replaced at  i n t e r v a l s , 

such parts are recognised as individual assets with 
specific useful lives and depreciated accordingly. 
Likewise, when a major inspec�on is performed, its 
cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant 
and equipment as a replacement if the recogni�on 
criteria are sa�sfied. All other repair and maintenance 
costs are recognised in the profit or loss as incurred.

Deprecia�on on the categories of property, plant and 
equipment is calculated to write off the cost less the 
residual value of the asset, using the straight-line basis, 
over the assets' expected useful lives. Land and capital 
work-in-progress are not depreciated. The a�ributable 
cost of each item of capital work-in-progress is 
transferred to the relevant asset category immediately 
the asset is available for use and depreciated 
accordingly. The normal expected useful lives for the 
major categories of property, plant and equipment are:   
    Years
Land    Nil 
Buildings   50 
Plant and machinery      4 to 25
Office equipment  4 to 10
Furniture and fi�ngs  8
Motor vehicles   4 to 6
Capital work-in-progress (WIP) Nil

An item of property, plant and equipment and any 
significant part ini�ally recognised is derecognised 
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss 
arising on derecogni�on of the asset (calculated as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit 
or loss when the asset is derecognised.

The assets 'residual values, useful lives and methods of 
deprecia�on are reviewed at each financial year end 
and adjusted prospec�vely, if appropriate.
Impairment reviews are performed when there are 
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be 
recoverable.

Impairment losses and reversals of impairment losses 
are recognised in the profit or loss.

An item of property, plant and equipment is 
derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
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economic benefits are expected to arise from the 
con�nued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on 
the disposal or re�rement of an asset is determined as 
the difference between the sales proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit 
or loss.

2.2.8 Leases
The Company assesses whether a contract is or 
contains a lease, at incep�on of the contract. The 
Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a 
corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease 
arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-
term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 
months or less) and leases of low value assets (such as 
tablets and personal computers, small items of office 
furniture and telephones). For these leases, the 
Company recognises the lease payments as an 
opera�ng expense on a straight-line basis over the 
term of the lease unless another systema�c basis is 
more representa�ve of the �me pa�ern in which 
economic benefits from the leased assets are 
consumed.

The lease liability is ini�ally measured at the present 
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted by using the rate 
implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily 
determined, the Company uses its incremental 
borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the 
lease liability comprise:

Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed 
payments), less any lease incen�ves receivable; 

   · Variable lease payments that depend on an index 
or rate, ini�ally measured using the index or rate 
at the commencement date; 

   · The amount expected to be payable by the lessee 
under residual value guarantees; 

   · The exercise price of purchase op�ons, if the 
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the 
op�ons; and 

   · Payments of penal�es for termina�ng the lease, 
if the lease term reflects the exercise of an op�on 
to terminate the lease. 

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the 
statement of financial posi�on.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by 
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on 
the lease liability (using the effec�ve interest method) 
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the 
lease payments made. 
The Company remeasures the lease liability (and 
makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-
of-use asset) whenever: 

The lease term has changed or there is a significant 
event or change in circumstances resul�ng in a change 
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase op�on, in 
which case the lease liability is remeasured by 
discoun�ng the revised lease payments using a revised 
discount rate.

The lease payments change due to changes in an index 
or rate or a change in expected payment under a 
guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease 
liability is remeasured by discoun�ng the revised lease 
payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless 
the lease payments change is due to a change in a 
floa�ng interest rate, in which case a revised discount 
rate is used). 

A lease contract is modified and the lease modifica�on 
is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case 
the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease 
term of the modified lease by discoun�ng the revised 
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the 
effec�ve date of the modifica�on. 

The Company did not make any such adjustments 
during the periods presented. 

The r ight-of-use assets comprise the ini�al 
measurement of the corresponding lease liability, 
lease payments made at or before the commencement 
day, less any lease incen�ves received and any ini�al 
direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost 
less accumulated deprecia�on and impairment losses.

Whenever the Company incurs an obliga�on for costs 
to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the 
site on which it is located or restore the underlying 
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asset to the condi�on required by the terms and 
condi�ons of the lease, a provision is recognised and 
measured under IAS 37. To the extent that the costs 
relate to a right-of-use asset, the costs are included in 
the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are 
incurred to produce inventories. 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter 
period of lease term and useful life of the underlying 
asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying 
asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that 
the Company expects to exercise a purchase op�on, 
the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the 
useful life of the underlying asset. The deprecia�on 
starts at the commencement date of the lease. 

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line 
in the statement of financial posi�on. 

The Company applies IAS 36 to determine whether a 
right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any 
iden�fied impairment loss as described in the 
'Property, Plant and Equipment' policy. 

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate 
are not included in the measurement the lease liability 
and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are 
recognised as an expense in the period in which the 
event or condi�on that triggers those payments 
occurs.

As a prac�cal expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not to 
separate non-lease components, and instead account 
for any lease and associated non-lease components as 
a single arrangement. The Company has not used this 
prac�cal expedient. For contracts that contain a lease 
component and one or more addi�onal lease or non-
lease components, the Company allocates the 
considera�on in the contract to each lease component 
based on the rela�ve stand-alone price of the lease 
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the 
non lease components.

The company as a lessee 
Finance leases transfer to the Company substan�ally 
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the 
leased asset.

The assets are measured at the commencement of the 
lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, 
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. 
Lease payments are appor�oned between finance 
charges and reduc�on of the lease liability to achieve a 
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of 
the liability. Finance charges are recognised as finance 
costs in the profit or loss. 

The capital element of assets under finance lease is 
capitalised along with the Company's property, plant 
and equipment and depreciated at the same rates for 
assets of that category, or over the lease term, where 
the lease term is shorter than the assets' useful lives.

Opera�ng lease payments are recognised as an 
opera�ng expense in the profit or loss on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term.

Leases – as a lessor 
Leases for which the Company is a lessor are classified 
as finance or opera�ng leases. Whenever the terms of 
the lease transfer substan�ally all the risks and rewards 
of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a 
finance lease. All other leases are classified as 
opera�ng leases.

Rental income from opera�ng leases is recognised on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. 
Ini�al direct costs incurred in nego�a�ng and arranging 
an opera�ng lease are added to the carrying amount of 
the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are 
recognised as receivables at the amount of the 
Company's net investment in the leases. Finance lease 
income is allocated to accoun�ng periods so as to 
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the 
Company's net investment outstanding in respect of 
the leases.

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease 
components, the Company applies IFRS 15 to allocate 
the considera�on under the contract to each 
component.
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2.2.9 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on, 
construc�on or produc�on of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substan�al period to get ready for its intended 
use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the 
respec�ve assets. All other borrowing costs are 
expensed in the year in which they occur. Borrowing 
costs consist of interest and other costs that the 
Company incurs in connec�on with the borrowing of 
funds.
   
2.2.10  Investment proper�es
Investment proper�es are measured ini�ally at cost, 
including transac�on costs. Subsequent to ini�al 
recogni�on, investment proper�es are stated at cost 
less accumulated deprecia�on and accumulated 
impairment losses.

The investment proper�es are subject to annual 
deprecia�on charge of 2% on a straight-line basis.

If Investment proper�es are derecognized when either 
they have been disposed of or when the investment 
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no 
future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. 
The difference between the net disposal proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the 
profit or loss in the year of derecogni�on.

Transfers are made to or from investment property 
only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from 
investment property to owner-occupied property, the 
deemed cost for subsequent accoun�ng is the fair 
value at the date of change. Owner-occupied property 
becomes an investment property, the Company 
accounts for such property in accordance with the 
policy stated under property, plant and equipment up 
to the date of change in use.

2.2.11  Intangible assets
Product licenses are measured on ini�al recogni�on at 
cost. Following ini�al recogni�on, intangible assets are 
carried at cost less any accumulated amor�sa�on and 
any accumulated impairment losses. The company 
makes upfront payments to purchase product licences.
T h e  p ro d u c t  l i c e n s e s  a re  h e l d  o n  va r i o u s 
pharmaceu�cal products sold by the Company and 
have licence years that range from 2 to 5years. The 

licences may be renewed by the Company at the 
expira�on of the license period.
     
Intangible assets with finite lives are amor�sed over 
the useful economic lives. The amor�sa�on period and 
the amor�sa�on method for an intangible asset with a 
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial 
year end.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected 
pa�ern of consump�on of future economic benefits 
embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing 
the amor�sa�on period or method, as appropriate, 
and treated as changes in accoun�ng es�mates. The 
amor�sa�on expense on intangible assets with finite 
lives is recognised in the profit or loss in the expense 
category consistent with the func�on of the intangible 
asset.

Amor�sa�on is calculated using the straight–line basis 
to write down the cost of intangible assets to their 
residual values over their es�mated useful lives.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or 
when no future economic benefit is expected from use 
or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the 
derecogni�on of an intangible asset is determined as 
the difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the intangible asset and 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the 
asset is derecognised.

Research and development costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development 
expenditures on an individual project are recognised as 
an intangible asset when the Company can 
demonstrate:

   · The technical feasibility of comple�ng the 
intangible asset so that the asset will be available 
for use or sale

   · Its inten�on to complete and its ability and 
inten�on to use or sell the asset

   · It is probable that the asset will generate future 
economic benefit.

   · The availability of resources to complete the 
asset
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2.2.12  Financial instruments    
(i) Financial assets
 A financial asset is any asset that is: 
   · cash.
   · an equity instrument of another en�ty.
   · a contractual right to receive cash or another 

financial asset (e.g. receivables); or
   · a contractual right to exchange financial assets 

or financial liabili�es with another en�ty under 
condi�ons that are poten�ally favourable to 
GSK (e.g. deriva�ves resul�ng in an asset, 
bonds and investments)

(ii)     Financial liability
 A financial liability is any liability that is:
 A contractual obliga�on to deliver cash or 

another financial asset (e.g. payable); or a 
contractual obliga�on to exchange financial 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)
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Fol lowing  the  comple�on of  research  and 
development, it is transferred to another asset which 
is then depreciated, the asset is carried at cost less any 
accumulated amor�sa�on and accumulated 
impairment losses. Amor�sa�on of the asset begins 
when development is complete, and the asset is 
available for use. It is amor�sed over the period of 
expected future benefit.

Amor�sa�on is recorded in cost of sales. During the 
period of development, the asset is tested for 
impairment annually.

Licences   
The Company made upfront payments to purchase 

licences. Licences for the use of intellectual property 
are granted for periods ranging between five and ten 
years depending on the specific licences. 

Trademark   
The Company made upfront payments to purchase 
trademarks. The trademarks have been granted for a 
period of 5-10 years by the relevant government 
agency with the op�on of renewal at the end of this 
period. Licences for the use of intellectual property are 
granted for periods ranging between five and ten 
years.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company's 
intangible assets is, as follows:

assets or financial liabili�es with another en�ty 
u n d e r  co n d i � o n s  t h at  a re  p o te n� a l l y 
unfavourable to the Company (e.g. payables, 
loans and deriva�ves resul�ng in a liability).

(iii) Amor�sed cost    
 Most of Fidson's financial assets and liabili�es 

are measured at amor�sed cost, including most 
trade receivables and trade payables. The 
amor�sed cost of a financial asset or financial 
liability is the amount at which the asset or 
liability is measured at ini�al recogni�on minus 
principal repayments to date, and minus any 
reduc�on for impairment.

 If there is a difference between the ini�al 
amount and the maturity amount (arising from 
reasons other than impairment), amor�sed cost 
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an en�ty needs to apply one of the following 
approaches:

   · The simplified approach, which will be applied to 
trade receivables.

   · The general approach, which will be applied to 
other receivables, including royalty receivables, 
and to loan assets and investments in debt 
securi�es.

A) The simplified impairment approach
 The simplified approach applied to trade 

receivables requires the recogni�on of life�me 
ECLs at all �mes.  Fidson uses a provision matrix 
as a prac�cal expedient for determining ECLs on 
trade receivables, including non-overdue 
ba lances .  The prov is ion  matr ix  should 
incorporate forward-looking informa�on into 
historical customer default rates and, where 
appropriate, group receivables into customer 
segments that have similar loss pa�erns, such as 
Distr ibutors ,  Sa les  representa�ves and 
Ins�tu�ons

B) The general impairment approach
 Under the general approach, prior to an asset 

actually being credit-impaired, en��es recognise 
expected credit losses (ECLs) in two stages. For 
assets for which there has not been a significant 
increase in credit risk since ini�al recogni�on (i.e. 
'good' exposures), en��es are required to 
provide for ECLs that would result from default 
events that are possible within the next 12 
months (a 12-month ECL). 

 
 For assets for which there has been a significant 

increase in credit risk since ini�al recogni�on, a 
loss allowance for ECLs expected over the 
remaining life of the exposure, irrespec�ve of the 
�ming of the default (a life�me ECL), is required. "    

Indicators of a significant increase in credit risk include:

   · An actual or expected significant change in the 
financial asset's external or internal credit ra�ng.

   · Exis�ng or forecast adverse changes in business, 
financial or economic condi�ons that are 
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will also be plus or minus the cumula�ve 
amor�sa�on using the effec�ve interest method.   

 Amor�sed cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisi�on 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amor�sa�on is included in finance 
income in the profit or loss. The losses arising 
from impairment are recognised in profit or loss 
as finance costs.

   
(iv) Effec�ve interest method     
 The effec�ve interest method calculates 

amor�sed cost by alloca�ng the interest payment 
or expense over the relevant period.  This 
calcula�on only applies if a premium has been 
paid or a discount received.  The effec�ve interest 
rate is the rate that exactly discounts es�mated 
future cash payments or receipts through the 
expected life of the financial instrument.  When 
es�ma�ng cash flows, all contractual terms are 
considered but expected future credit losses are 
not taken into account unless the financial 
instrument is credit impaired.

(v) Expected credit loss (ECL)      
 The expected credit loss is the difference 

between the cash flows due under the contract 
and the cash flows expected to be received, 
discounted at the original effec�ve interest rate. 
An expected credit loss allowance is similar to an 
impairment provision.

(vi)    Expected credit loss allowance
 An allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) on 

all financial assets measured at amor�sed cost, 
e.g. most trade and other receivables, is set up 
through the Income Statement at ini�al 
recogni�on of the asset. The ECL is deducted from 
the carrying value of the asset on the balance 
sheet. Subsequent movements in the ECL 
(including release of the ECL if the asset is 
recovered in full) are reported in the Income 
Statement. 

 All ECL (impairment) allowances must be 
reviewed at least quarterly. 

 In applying the IFRS 9 impairment requirements, 
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expected to cause a significant change in the 
debtor's ability to meet its debt obliga�ons, such 
as an increase in interest rates or a significant 
increase in unemployment rates;

   · An actual or expected significant change in the 
opera�ng results of the debtor; 

   · Significant increases in credit risk on other 
financial instruments of the debtor;

   · An actual or expected significant adverse change 
in the regulatory, economic, or technological 
environment of the debtor that results in a 
significant change in the debtor's ability to meet 
its debt obliga�ons, such as a decline in the 
demand for the debtor's sales product because of 
a shi� in technology;

   · Expected changes in the loan documenta�on (i.e. 
changes in contract terms) including an expected 
breach of contract that may lead to covenant 
waivers or amendments, interest payment 
holidays, interest rate step-ups, requiring 
addi�onal collateral or guarantees, or other 
changes to the contractual framework of the 
instrument;

   · Significant changes in the expected performance 
and behaviour of the debtor, including changes in 
the payment status of debtor in the group (e.g., 
an increase in the expected number or extent of 
delayed contractual payments); and

   · Past due informa�on on debtors.

For current assets (expected to be recovered in less 
than 12 months), there will be no difference between 
the 12-month ECL and the life�me ECL.

(vii) Impairment on available-for-sale financial 
investments

 Available-for-sale financial assets are impaired if 
there is objec�ve evidence of impairment, 
resul�ng from one or more loss events that 
occurred a�er ini�al recogni�on but before the 
repor�ng date, that have an impact on the future 
cash flows of the asset.        

 In the case of equity investments classified as 

available-for-sale, objec�ve evidence would 
include a significant or prolonged decline in the 
fair value of the investment below its cost. 
'Significant' is evaluated against the original cost 
of the investment and 'prolonged' against the 
year in which the fair value has been below its 
original cost. 

 When there is evidence of impairment, the 
cumula�ve loss – measured as the difference 
between the acquisi�on cost and the current fair 
value, less any impairment loss on that 
investment previously recognized in the profit or 
loss – is reclassified from equity and to the profit 
or loss. Impairment losses on equity investments 
are not reversed through the profit or loss; 
increases in their fair value a�er impairment are 
recognized in other comprehensive income.     

(viii) Derecogni�on of financial assets      
 A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a 

financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is derecognised when:

        
      · The rights to receive cash flows from the asset 

have expired
  
      · The company has transferred its rights to 

receive cash flows from the asset or has 
assumed an obliga�on to pay the received cash 
flows in full without material delay to a third 
party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and 
either       

(a) the Company has transferred substan�ally all the 
risks and rewards of the asset, or        

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor 
retained substan�ally all the risks and rewards of 
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.       

 When the Company has transferred its rights to 
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered 
into a pass-through arrangement, and has 
neither transferred nor retained substan�ally all 
of the risks and rewards of the asset nor 
transferred control of it, the asset is recognised to 
the extent of the Company's con�nuing 
involvement in it.
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 In that case, the Company also recognises an 
associated liability. The transferred asset and the 
associated liability are measured on a basis that 
reflects the rights and obliga�ons that the 
Company has retained. Con�nuing involvement 
that takes the form of a guarantee over the 
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the 
original carrying amount of the asset and the 
maximum amount of considera�on that the 
Company could be required to repay.

(ix) Derecogni�on of financial liabili�es
 A financial liability is derecognised when the 

obliga�on under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an exis�ng financial 
liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substan�ally different terms, or the 
terms of an exis�ng liability are substan�ally 
modified, such an exchange or modifica�on is 
treated as a derecogni�on of the original liability 
and the recogni�on of a new liability, and the 
difference in the respec�ve carrying amounts is 
recognised in the profit or loss.

(X) Offse�ng of financial instruments    
 Financial assets and financial liabili�es are offset 

and the net amount reported in the statement of 
financial posi�on if, and only if, there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised 
amounts and there is an inten�on to se�le on a 
net basis, or to realise the assets and se�le the 
liabili�es simultaneously.    

2.2.13 Inventories         
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value.   

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present 
loca�on and condi�on is accounted for as follows:
  
   · Raw materials are stated at purchase cost on the 

weighted average basis.

   · Finished goods and work in progress: Cost in this 
case consists of direct purchase cost, conversion 
cost (materials, labour and overhead) and other 
costs incurred to bring inventory to its present 
condi�on and loca�on. Finished goods are valued 

using weighted average cost

• Goods in transit are valued at the invoiced price.       

Net realisable value is the es�mated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business, less es�mated costs of 
comple�on and the es�mated costs necessary to make 
the sale.

2.2.14  Impairment of non-financial assets
The company assesses, at each repor�ng date, 
whether there is an indica�on that an asset may be 
impaired. If any indica�on exists, or when annual 
impairment tes�ng for an asset is required, the 
Company es�mates the asset's recoverable amount. 
An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an 
asset's or cash-genera�ng units (CGU) fair value less 
costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable 
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless 
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are 
largely independent of those from other assets or 
group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset 
or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is 
considered impaired and is wri�en down to its 
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the es�mated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the �me value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs 
of disposal, recent market transac�ons are taken into 
account. If no such transac�ons can be iden�fied, an 
appropriate valua�on model is  used. These 
calcula�ons are corroborated by valua�on mul�ples, 
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or 
other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of con�nuing opera�ons are 
recognised in the profit or loss in expense categories 
consistent with the func�on of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each repor�ng date to 
determine whether there is an indica�on that 
previously recognised impairment losses no longer 
exist or have decreased. If such indica�on exists, the 
Company es�mates the asset's or CGU's recoverable 
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is 
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reversed only if there has been a change in the 
assump�ons used to determine the asset 's 
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was 
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying 
amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable 
amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined, net of deprecia�on, had no 
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior 
years. Such reversal is recognised in the profit or loss.
 
2.2.15    Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in 
hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity 
of three months or less, as shown in the statement of 
financial posi�on. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash 
and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in 
hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity 
of three months or less, as shown in the statement of 
financial posi�on, net of outstanding bank overdra�s 
as they are considered an integral part of the 
Company's cash management.

2.2.16    Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a 
present obliga�on (legal or construc�ve) as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that an ou�low of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to se�le 
the obliga�on and a reliable es�mate can be made of 
the amount of the obliga�on. Where the Company 
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for 
example  under  an  insurance  contract ,  the 
reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but 
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The 
expense rela�ng to any provision is recognized in profit 
or loss net of any reimbursement. 

If the effect of the �me value of money is material, 
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate 
that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to 
the liability. Where discoun�ng is used, the increase in 
the provision due to the passage of �me is recognized 
as a finance cost.

2.2.17 Pension and other post-employment benefits

Re�rement benefit Schemes
The gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The cost 

of providing the benefits under the defined benefit 
plan is determined using the projected unit credit 
method. 

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately 
in the statement of financial posi�on with a 
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings 
through other comprehensive income in the year in 
which they occur. Actuarial gains and losses are not 
reclassified to the profit or loss in subsequent years.

Pension 
The company operates a defined contribu�on plan in 
line with the provisions of the Pension Reform Act 2014 
as amended. This plan is in propor�on to the services 
rendered to the Company by the employees with no 
further obliga�on on the part of the Company. The 
company and its employee contribute 10% and 8% 
respec�vely of employees' current salaries and 
designated al lowances to the scheme. Staff 
contribu�ons to the scheme are funded through 
payroll deduc�ons while the Company's contribu�on is 
recorded as personnel expenses in the profit or loss.

Past service costs are recognized in the profit or loss on 
the earlier of:

   · the date of the plan amendment or curtailment, 
and

   · the date that  the Company recognizes 
restructuring-related costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate 
to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The 
company recognizes the following changes in the net 
defined benefit obliga�on under 'cost of sales', 
'administra�on expenses' and 'selling and distribu�on 
expenses' in statement of profit or loss (by func�on):

   · Service costs comprising current service costs, 
past-service costs and gains and losses on 
curtailments

   · Net interest expense or income

Short term benefits
Short term employee benefits are measured on an 
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undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related 
service is provided. A provision is recognized for the 
amount expected to be paid under short term cash-
bonus plans if the Company has a present and 
construc�ve obliga�on to pay this amount as a result of 
past service provided by the employee and the 
obliga�on can be measured reliably.

Termina�on benefits
Termina�on benefits are recognized as an expense 
when the Company is demonstrably commi�ed 
without realis�c possibility of withdrawal, to a formal 
detailed plan to terminate employment before the 
normal re�rement date.

2.2.18    Dividends
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a 
liability when they are approved by the Company's 
shareholders at the Annual General Mee�ng. 
Dividends are recognised, when they are paid. 
Dividends for the year that are approved a�er the 
repor�ng date are disclosed in the financial statements 
as a non-adjus�ng event.

2.2.19   Segment repor�ng
For management purposes, the Company is organised 
into business units based on its products and has two 
reportable segments as follows:

   · The over-the-counter segment, which represent 
the products that may be sold directly to the 
consumer without a prescrip�on. 

   · Ethical products segment, which are drugs, 
injectables and infusion which would be sold to 
the consumer only on the possession of a valid 
prescrip�on.

   · Consumer segment, which represent household 
items was introduced in 2016.

 
No opera�ng segments have been aggregated to form 
the above reportable opera�ng segments. The 
Execu�ve Management Commi�ee monitors the 
opera�ng results of its business units separately for the 
purpose of making decisions about resource alloca�on 
and performance assessment. Segment performance 
is evaluated based on revenue and cost of sales. The 
Execu�ve Management Commi�ee monitors the 

opera�ng results of the whole business for the purpose 
of making decisions about resource alloca�on and 
performance assessment.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, 
ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
The prepara�on of the financial statements requires 
management to make judgments, es�mates and 
assump�ons that affect the reported amounts of 
revenues, expenses, assets and liabili�es, and the 
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of 
con�ngent liabili�es. Uncertainty about these 
assump�ons and es�mates could result in outcomes 
that require a material adjustment to the carrying 
amount of the asset or liability affected in future years. 
Other disclosures rela�ng to the Company's exposure 
to risks and uncertain�es includes: 

   · Capital management - Note 42

   · Financial risk management and policies - Note 40

3.1     Judgments 
In the process of applying the Company's accoun�ng 
policies, management has made the following 
judgments, which have the most significant effect on 
the amounts recognized in the financial statements: 

Opera�ng lease commitments — Company as lessor 
The company has entered into commercial property 
leases on its investment property por�olio. The 
company has determined, based on an evalua�on of 
the terms and condi�ons of the arrangements, such as 
the lease term not cons�tu�ng a substan�al por�on of 
the economic life of the commercial property, that it 
retains all the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of these proper�es and accounts for the 
contracts as opera�ng leases.

3.2 Es�mates and assump�ons 
The key assump�ons concerning the future and other 
key sources of es�ma�on uncertainty at the repor�ng 
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabili�es within the next afinancial year, are described 
below. The company based its assump�ons and 
es�mates on parameters available when the financial 
statements were prepared. Exis�ng circumstances and 
assump�ons about future developments, however, 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019



01

2019 Annual Reports & Accounts

58

may change due to market changes or circumstances 
arising beyond the control of the Company. Such 
changes are reflected in the assump�ons when they 
occur.

Taxes
Uncertain�es exist with respect to the interpreta�on of 
complex tax regula�ons, changes in tax laws, and the 
amount and �ming of future taxable income. Given the 
wide range of interna�onal business rela�onships and 
the long-term nature and complexity of exis�ng 
contractual agreements, differences arising between 
the actual results and the assump�ons made, or future 
changes to such assump�ons, could necessitate future 
adjustments to tax income and expense already 
recorded. The company establishes provisions, based 
on reasonable es�mates, for possible consequences of 
audits by the tax authori�es.

Re�rement benefits
The cost of defined benefit gratuity scheme is 
determined using actuarial valua�ons. An actuarial 
valua�on involves making various assump�ons, which 
may differ from actual developments in the future. 
These include the determina�on of the discount rate, 
future salary increases, mortality rates and future 
pension increases. Due to the complexity of the 
valua�on, the underlying assump�ons and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obliga�on is highly 
sensi�ve to changes in these assump�ons. All 
assump�ons are reviewed at each repor�ng date. 
Refer to Note 26 for assump�ons rela�ng to re�rement 
benefits.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments 
When the fair value of financial assets and financial 
liabili�es recorded in the statement of financial 
posi�on cannot be derived from ac�ve markets, their 
fair value is determined using valua�on techniques 
including the discounted cash flow model. The inputs 
to these models are taken from observable markets 
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree 
of judgment is required in establishing fair values. The 
judgments include considera�ons of inputs such as 
liquidity risk, credit risk and vola�lity. Changes in 
assump�ons about these factors could affect the 
reported fair value of financial instruments.  See Note 
41 for further disclosures.

Available-for-Sale financial instruments 
The company assesses at each repor�ng date whether 
there is any objec�ve evidence that the available for 
sale financial assets is impaired.  Available-for-sale 
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, there is 
objec�ve evidence of impairment as a result of one or 
more events that has occurred a�er the ini�al 
recogni�on (an incurred 'loss event') and that loss 
event has an impact on the es�mated future cash flows 
of the Available-for-sale financial assets that can be 
reliably es�mated. The objec�ve evidence the 
Management relies upon in assessing the Available-
for-sale financial assets for impairment includes 
informa�on about significant changes with an adverse 
effect that have taken place in the technological, 
market, economic or legal environment in which the 
issuer operates, and indicates that the cost of the 
investment in the equity instrument may not be 
recovered. A significant or prolonged decline in the fair 
value of an investment in an equity instrument below 
its cost is also seen as an objec�ve evidence of 
impairment.

The company judges that the impairment is significant 
if the fair value declined is between 20% and 30% and 
prolonged when it is between 9 and 12 months.

When the fair value of available-for-sale financial 
assets cannot be derived from ac�ve markets, their fair 
value is determined using valua�on techniques 
including the discounted cash flow model. The inputs 
to these models are taken from observable markets 
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree 
of judgment is required in establishing fair values. The 
judgments include considera�ons of inputs such as 
liquidity risk, credit risk and vola�lity. Changes in 
assump�ons about these factors could affect the 
reported fair value of financial instruments. Refer to 
Note 19 on the details of available for sale financial 
assets.

Property, plant and equipment 
The company carries its property, plant and equipment 
at cost in the Statement of Financial Posi�on. Es�mates 
and assump�ons made to determine their carrying 
value and related deprecia�on are cri�cal to the 
Company's financial posi�on and performance. The 
charge in respect of periodic deprecia�on is derived 
a�er determining an es�mate of an asset's expected 
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useful life and the expected residual value at the end of 
its life. The useful lives and residual values of the assets 
are determined by management at the �me the asset is 
acquired and reviewed periodically. The lives are based 
on historical experience with similar assets as well as 
an�cipa�on of future events, which may impact their 
life, such as changes in technology. The company 
reviews the es�mated the useful lives and residual 
values of its property, plant and equipment, and 
accounts for any changes prospec�vely. Refer to Note 
15 on property plant and equipment.

Allowance for uncollec�ble accounts receivable 
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are 
stated at their nominal value as reduced by 
appropriate allowances for es�mated irrecoverable 
amounts. Es�mated irrecoverable amounts are based 
on the aging of the receivable balances and historical 
experience based on the facts and circumstances 
prevailing as at repor�ng date. In addi�on, a large 
number of minor receivables is grouped into 
homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment 
collec�vely. Individual trade receivables are wri�en off 
w h e n  m a n a g e m e n t  c o n s i d e rs  t h e m  t o  b e 
uncollectable.

Property, plant and equipment
The company own a property with dual purpose. The 
por�on not occupied by the company cannot be 
separately sold or leased out under a finance lease 
arrangement. Management believe it occupies a 
significant por�on of the property; hence the whole 
property has been classified as property, plant & 
equipment.

4.0 New and amended IFRS Standards that became 
effec�ve on 1  January 2019

Impact of ini�al applica�on of IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 introduces new or amended requirements with 
respect to lease accoun�ng. It introduces significant 
changes to lessee accoun�ng by removing the 
dis�nc�on between opera�ng and finance lease and 
requiring the recogni�on of a right-of-use asset and a 
lease liability at commencement for all leases, except 
for short-term leases and leases of low value assets. In 
contrast to lessee accoun�ng, the requirements for 
lessor accoun�ng have remained largely unchanged. 
However, there are addi�onal disclosures required. 

Please see note 26.

The Company has applied IFRS 16 using the cumula�ve 
catch up method with no restatement of the 
compara�ve informa�on.

Impact of the new defini�on of a lease 
The Company has made use of the prac�cal expedient 
available on transi�on to IFRS 16 not to reassess 
whether a contract is or contains a lease. Accordingly, 
the defini�on of a lease in accordance with IAS 17 and 
IFRIC 4 will con�nue to be applied to those contracts 
entered or modified before 1 January 2019. 
The change in defini�on of a lease mainly relates to the 
concept of control. IFRS 16 determines whether a 
contract contains a lease based on whether the 
customer has the right to control the use of an 
iden�fied asset for a period in exchange for 
considera�on. This is in contrast to the focus on 'risks 
and rewards' in IAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

The Company applies the defini�on of a lease and 
related guidance set out in IFRS 16 to all contracts 
entered into or changed on or a�er 1 January 2019.

Impact on Lessee Accoun�ng 
(I) Former opera�ng leases 
 IFRS 16 changes how the Company accounts for 

leases previously classified as opera�ng leases 
under IAS 17, which were off balance sheet. 

Applying IFRS 16, for leases, the Company: 

(a) Recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabili�es 
in the statement of financial posi�on, ini�ally 
measured at the present value of the future lease 
payments; 

(b) Recognises deprecia�on of right-of-use assets 
and interest on lease liabili�es in profit or loss; 

(c) Separates the total amount of cash paid into a 
principal por�on (presented within financing 
ac�vi�es) and interest (presented within 
financing ac�vi�es) in the statement of cash 
flows.

The adop�on of IFRS 16 resulted in Right of use assets 
recognised amoun�ng to ₦703 million, see note 16. 
Furthermore, lease liability of ₦529 million was 
recognised at 31 December 2019, see note 26. There 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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was no impact on the net cashflows; however lease 
payments were disclosed in the Financing sec�on of 
the Statement of Cashflows. There was no material 
impact on equity.

Amendments to IFRS 9- Prepayment Features with 
Nega�ve Compensa�on
The amendments to IFRS 9 clarify that for the purpose 
of assessing whether a prepayment feature meets the 
'solely payments of principal and interest' (SPPI) 
condi�on, the party exercising the op�on may pay or 
receive reasonable compensa�on for the prepayment 
irrespec�ve of the reason for prepayment. In other 
words, financial assets with prepayment features with 
nega�ve compensa�on do not automa�cally fail SPPI. 
This did not have any impact as the Company does not 
have such contracts.

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits Plan 
Amendment, Curtailment or Se�lement 
The amendments clarify that the past service cost (or 
of the gain or loss on se�lement) is calculated by 
measuring the defined benefit liability (asset) using 
updated assump�ons and comparing benefits offered 
and plan assets before and a�er the plan amendment 
(or curtailment or se�lement) but ignoring the effect 
of the asset ceiling (that may arise when the defined 
benefit plan is in a surplus posi�on). IAS 19 is now clear 
that the change in the effect of the asset ceiling that 
may result from the plan amendment (or curtailment 
or se�lement) is determined in a second step and is 
recognised in the normal  manner in  other 
comprehensive income.

The paragraphs that relate to measuring the current 
service cost and the net interest on the net defined 
benefit liability (asset) have also been amended. The 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019

Company will now be required to use the updated 
assump�ons from this remeasurement to determine 
current service cost and net interest for the remainder 
of the repor�ng period a�er the change to the plan. In 
the case of the net interest, the amendments make it 
clear that for the period post plan amendment, the net 
interest is calculated by mul�plying the net defined 
benefit liability (asset) as remeasured under IAS 19:99 
with the discount rate used in the remeasurement 
(also taking into account the effect of contribu�ons 
and benefit payments on the net defined benefit 
liability (asset).

The standard has no material impact on the Financial 
Statement

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 
IFRIC 23 sets out how to determine the accoun�ng tax 
posi�on when there is uncertainty over income tax 
treatments. The Interpreta�on requires the Company 
to:  
   · determine whether uncertain tax posi�ons are 

assessed separately or as a Company; and
   · assess whether it is probable that a tax authority 

will accept an uncertain tax treatment used, or 
proposed to be used, by an en�ty in its income 
tax filings: If yes, the Company should determine 
its accoun�ng tax posi�on consistently with the 
tax treatment used or planned to be used in its 
income tax filings.

If no, the Company should reflect the effect of 
uncertainty in determining its accoun�ng tax posi�on 
using either the most likely amount or the expected 
value method. 
The Company has followed the approach to be used in 
the filed returns so no material impact from this 
amendment.

New and revised IFRS Standards in issue but not yet effec�ve 
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IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
The new Standard establishes the principles for the 
recogni�on, measurement, presenta�on and 
disclosure of insurance contracts and supersedes IFRS 
4 Insurance Contracts. The Standard outlines a General 
Model, which is modified for insurance contracts with 
direct par�cipa�on features, described as the Variable 
Fee Approach. The General Model is simplified if 
certain criteria are met by measuring the liability for 
remaining coverage using the Premium Alloca�on 
Approach.
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
The General Model will use current assump�ons to 
es�mate the amount, �ming and uncertainty of future 
cash flows and it will explicitly measure the cost of that 
uncertainty, it takes into account market interest rates 
and the impact of policyholders' op�ons and 
guarantees.

The implementa�on of the Standard is unlikely to bring 
significant changes to en�ty's processes, systems and 
financial statements, as the Company does not hold 
insurance contracts.

The Standard is effec�ve for annual repor�ng periods 
beginning on or a�er 1 January 2021, with early 
applica�on permi�ed. 

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 
(amendments) Sale or Contribu�on of Assets 
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint 
Venture
The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with 
situa�ons where there is a sale or contribu�on of 
assets between an investor and its associate or joint 
venture. Specifically, the amendments state that gains 
or losses resul�ng from the loss of control of a 
subsidiary that does not contain a business in a 
transac�on with an associate or a joint venture that is 
accounted for using the equity method, are recognised 
in the parent's profit or loss only to the extent of the 
unrelated investors' interests in that associate or joint 
venture. Similarly, gains and losses resul�ng from the 
remeasurement of investments retained in any former 
subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint 
venture that is accounted for using the equity method) 
to fair value are recognised in the former parent's 
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated 
investors' interests in the new associate or joint 

venture. The effec�ve date of the amendments has yet 
to be set by the IASB; however, earlier applica�on of 
the amendments is permi�ed. The directors of the 
Company an�cipate that the applica�on of these 
amendments will not have an impact on the financial 
statements in future periods.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Defini�on of a business
The amendments clarify that while businesses usually 
have outputs, outputs are not required for an 
integrated set of ac�vi�es and assets to qualify as a 
business. To be considered a business an acquired set 
of ac�vi�es and assets must include, at a minimum, an 
input and a substan�ve process that together 
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

Addi�onal guidance is provided that helps to 
determine whether a substan�ve process has been 
acquired.

The amendments introduce an op�onal concentra�on 
test that permits a simplified assessment of whether 
an acquired set of ac�vi�es and assets is not a business. 

Under the op�onal concentra�on test, the acquired set 
of ac�vi�es and assets is not a business if substan�ally 
all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is 
concentrated in a single iden�fiable asset or group of 
similar assets.

The amendments are applied prospec�vely to all 
business combina�ons and asset acquisi�ons for which 
the acquisi�on date is on or a�er the first annual 
repor�ng period beginning on or a�er 1 January 2020, 
with early applica�on permi�ed. The directors of the 
Company an�cipate that the applica�on of these 
amendments will not have an impact on the financial 
statements in future periods.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Defini�on of material
The amendments are intended to make the defini�on 
of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not 
intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality 
in IFRS Standards. The concept of 'obscuring' material 
informa�on with immaterial informa�on has been 
included as part of the new defini�on.

The threshold for materiality influencing users has 
been changed from 'could influence' to 'could 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)
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reasonably be expected to influence'.

The defini�on of material in IAS 8 has been replaced by 
a reference to the defini�on of material in IAS 1. In 
addi�on, the IASB amended other Standards and the 
Conceptual Framework that contain a defini�on of 
material or refer to the term 'material' to ensure 
consistency.

The amendments are applied prospec�vely for annual 
periods beginning on or a�er 1 January 2020, with 
earlier applica�on permi�ed. The directors do not 
an�cipate this to have material impact on the Financial 
Statements

Amendments to References to the Conceptual 
Framework in IFRS Standards
Together with the revised Conceptual Framework, 
which became effec�ve upon publica�on on 29 March 
2018, the IASB has also issued Amendments to 
References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS 

Standards. The document contains amendments to 
IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS 1, IAS 8, IAS 34, IAS 37, 
IAS 38, IFRIC 12, IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32.

Not all amendments, however, update those 
pronouncements with regard to references to and 
quotes from the framework so that they refer to the 
r e v i s e d  C o n c e p t u a l  F r a m e w o r k .  S o m e 
pronouncements are only updated to indicate which 
version of the Framework they are referencing to (the 
IASC Framework adopted by the IASB in 2001, the IASB 
Framework of 2010, or the new revised Framework of 
2018) or to indicate that defini�ons in the Standard 
have not been updated with the new defini�ons 
developed in the revised Conceptual Framework.

The amendments, where they actually are updates, are 
effec�ve for annual periods beginning on or a�er 1 
January 2020, with early applica�on permi�ed. The 
directors do not an�cipate this to have material impact 
on the Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

Revenue represents total value of goods invoiced to third par�es locally.  

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019



14  Taxa�on
  
14a Income tax expense  
 The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2019:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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15.    Property, Plant and Equipment

393,453 8,566,089

8,566,089

8,566,089
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

15.1 This represents reclassifica�on from capital work in progress to plant and machinery

15.2 This represents transfer from property plant and equipment to right of use assets in line with IFRS 16.

15.3 The company's assets have been pledged as security for bank borrowings to the tune of the outstanding 
balance of total borrowings outside the Company at the repor�ng date (See Note 24). The company is not allowed 
to pledge or sell these assets as security for other borrowings or sell them to another en�ty.

16  Right of Use Assets

The company leases motor vehicles and Plant & Machinery. The average lease term is 5 years.

Approximately N247.8m of the leases for the company expired in the current financial year.

There are no indica�ons of impairment of right of use assets.

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

The only investment property held by Fidson Healthcare Plc is the premises used by Ecomed. The annual rental 
commenced in June 2010. 

The company has no restric�ons on the realisability of its investment property and no contractual obliga�ons to 
purchase, construct or develop investment property or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements. 

The product licenses are intangible assets with finite life and are amor�zed in line with the provisions of IAS 38. The 
intangible assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators of impairment in line with the provisions of IAS 36, 
by comparing the recoverable amount with the carrying amount at the end of the repor�ng period. There were no 
indicators of impairment during the year.

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

19  Financial assets

 The company's financial instruments are summarised by categories as follows:

The company recognised a fair value loss of N890,000 (2018: N518,000) on available for sale quoted equity. The loss is 
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Cardinal Stone Partners Limited is the por�olio management and custodial service provider for the Company 
towards mee�ng its payment on the bond. The company on a weekly basis remits money to Cardinal Stone Partners 
Limited.

Cardinal Stone Partners Limited is however to disburse funds on monthly basis into the transi�on account 
maintained by the Bond Trustee (ALM Trustees).

The addi�on represents the weekly contribu�on from Fidson to Cardinal Stone Partners while the drawdown 
represents monthly transfers to ALM Trustees towards the repayment of bond interest and principal. 

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

ALM Trustees are the Bond Trustees for the issuance of N2 billion bond by Fidson (issuer). Under the bond 
agreement, the issuer is required to fund a reserve account with an amount equal to the interest payable on the 
next payment date. The issuer shall fund the reserve account on the first business day of each month with an 
amount equal to 1/6th of the principal payable on the next payment date. The fund is inves�ble by the Bond Trustee 
and the issuer is restricted from assessing the fund including the accrued interest throughout the 5-year life of the 
bond that expired November 2019.

The company did not pledge any inventory as collateral for loans. There was no inventory write down in the year 
under review.

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

Other receivables relate to withholding tax, value 
added tax receivables and staff advances. These are 
not interest bearing and repayment is within 1 year. 

Trade receivables meet the defini�on of financial asset 
and the carrying amount of the trade receivables 
approximates their fair value. Trade receivables are 
expected to be fully collected within 1 year.

The company measures the loss allowance for trade 
receivables at an amount equal to life�me expected 
credit loss (ECL). The expected credit losses on trade 
receivables are es�mated using a provision matrix by 
reference to past default experience of the debtor and 
an analysis of the debtor's current financial posi�on 
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors 
general economic condi�ons of the industry in which 
the debtor operate and an amendment of both the 
current as well as the forecast direc�on of condi�ons at 
the repor�ng date.
There has been no change in the es�ma�on 
techniques or significant assump�on made during the 
current repor�ng period.

The company writes off a trade receivable when there 
is informa�on indica�ng that the debtor is in severe 
financial difficulty and there is no realis�c prospect of 
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under 
liquida�on or has entered bankruptcy proceedings, or 
when the bad receivables are over two years past due, 
whichever occurs earlier.

Trade receivables amoun�ng to N5.2million were 
wri�en off in the year. 

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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22a.   As at 31 December 2019, the ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows: 
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22a. As at 31 December 2018, the ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows: 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

22b As at 31 December 2019, trade receivables of an ini�al value of ₦522,665,638.08 (2018: ₦540,337,040.96) 
were impaired and provided for. See below for the movements in the provision for impairment of trade 
receivables.

This represents advances made to suppliers for the purchase of factory raw and packaging materials. Other 
prepayments include prepaid advert, prepaid insurance and prepaid rent. Prepaid rent relates to rental paid for 
warehouses. 

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

Short–term deposits are made for varying years of between one day and three months, depending on the 
immediate cash requirements of the Company and weighted average interest rate is at 8.14%. 

For the purpose of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Bank overdra� represents the outstanding commitment on short-term borrowings for working capital 
management. The bank overdra�s are secured against mortgage debenture held by a trustee. The lenders are 
Access Bank, Guaranty Trust Bank, FCMB, Fidelity and FSDH. The interest on the overdra� ranges from 19– 23%.

Cash at banks in some classified account (e.g Call accounts, DSRA account and others) earn interest at floa�ng rates 
based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three 
months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company, and earn interest at the respec�ve short-
term deposit rates.

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

25b Access Bank loan is N525million Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) interven�on loan granted to Fidson Healthcare 
Plc at 7% for 180 months. A fair value of the loan was obtained using es�mated market rate of 18%. The difference 
between the loan rate and market rate accounted for a grant element of N161m, which has been recognised as 
government grant and will be recognised over the dura�on of the loan.

The loan was granted in 2010 for the produc�on of drugs and pharmaceu�cal products and the condi�on is that the 
Company must be a member of the Manufacturers Associa�on of Nigeria (MAN); also there is periodic visit by the 
bank officers.

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

25c The BOI loan is a N1.287billion loan granted at 
10% for 72 months for the establishment of an 
intravenous fluid and Small Volume Parenteral (SVP) 
plant and the condi�on is that the Company must be a 
member of the Manufacturers Associa�on of Nigeria. A 
fair value of the loan was obtained using es�mated 
market rate of 18%. The difference between the loan 
rate and market rate accounted for a grant element of 
N299m. This was recognised as government grant and 
will be recognised in profit or loss over the dura�on of 
the loan. The loan was granted in 2011 with a 
moratorium of 2 years.

Addi�onal BOI loan 0f N600 million loan granted at 
12.5% for 36 months for the working capital finance 
was obtained in 2016. A fair value of the loan was 
obtained using es�mated market rate of 18%. The 
difference between the loan rate and market rate 
accounted for a grant element of N124.8m. This was 
recognised as government grant and will be recognised 
in the profit or loss over the dura�on of the loan. The 
loan was granted in 2016 with a moratorium of 1 year.

25d The BOI loan is a N2billion loan granted in two 
tranches of N1bn each. The first N1bn granted at 10% 
for 84 months for capital expenditure while the other 
N1bn granted at 12.5% for 42 months to augment 
working capital. 

A fair value of the loan was obtained using es�mated 
market rate of 18%. The difference between the loan 
rate and market rate accounted for a grant element of 
N221.2m. This was recognised as government grant 
and will be recognised in profit or loss over the dura�on 
of the loan. The loan was granted in 2019 with a 
moratorium of 1 year.

25e This is a ₦2 billion bond issued to investors on 7 
November 2015. 2,000,000 units were issued at a par 
value of ₦1,000/unit at a coupon rate of 15.5% and 
tenor of 5 years with a moratorium of 12 months. The 
bond money was used to refinance the then exis�ng 
Guaranty Trust Bank Plc and First City Monument Bank 
Plc debt and the balance used for working capital 
purpose. The bond is secured on the Company's 
Mortgage Debenture and all asset debenture managed 
by ALM Consul�ng limited. The issuing house is 
Cardinal Stone Partners Limited and the bond Trustee 
is ALM Consul�ng Limited.

25f The Fidelity Bank loan is a liability inherited from 
Fidson Product Limited upon its liquida�on in October 
2014. It is a N300 million CBN interven�on loan granted 
to Fidson Product Ltd at 7% for 180 months. A fair value 
of the loan was obtained using es�mated market rate 
of 18%. The difference between the loan rate and 
market rate accounted for a grant element of N82m 
which has been recognised as a Government grant and 
will be recognised over the dura�on of the loan. The 
loan was granted in 2010 for the produc�on diapers 
and paper products.

25g FCMB loan is a N1.5billion Central Bank of Nigeria 
(CBN) Real Sector Support Facility granted to Fidson 
Healthcare Plc at 9% for 60 months. A fair value of the 
loan was obtained using es�mated market rate of 17%. 
The difference between the loan rate and market rate 
accounted for a grant element of N213million that has 
been recognised as government grant and will be 
recognised over the dura�on of the loan.

The loan was granted in 2018 for the acquisi�on of Gas 
Generator and other pharmaceu�cal machinery for 
the Biotech factory.

25h This is a 1.5 billion loan granted by First city monument 
bank at 19% for 24 Months to repay the outstanding amount 
due to our third-party logis�cs providers.

25i Short- term borrowings above are current and are 
expected to be se�led within 12 months of the repor�ng 
date. The loan is from Guaranty Trust Bank, Access Bank and 
First City monument Bank with an Interest rate of 20%. The 
security on the borrowing is a tripar�te legal mortgage over 
the property.

The carrying value of short-term borrowings approximates 
their fair value due to the short-term nature and the fact that 
there were no material movement in market rates since the 
incep�on the loans.

Refer to Note 36c on details of collateral.

26  Obliga�on under finance lease
The company has entered into commercial leases on 
certain motor vehicles. These leases have an average 
life of between three and four years with no renewal 
op�on included in the contracts. There are no 
restric�ons placed upon the Company by entering into 
these leases.

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

26a Maturity analysis 

Analysed as

Finance lease on motor vehicles and equipment amoun�ng to ₦390.6 million was obtained in the year under 
review.

The actuarial valua�on was carried out by Ernest & Young FRC/2012/NAS/00000000738
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obliga�on are as follows

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

The valua�on assump�ons used in determining re�rement benefit obliga�ons for the plans are shown below:

Financial Assump�ons 

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

The discount rate is determined on the Company's repor�ng date by reference to market yields on high quality 
Government bonds. The discount rate should reflect the dura�on of the liabili�es of the benefit programme. 

The company has a medium term strategy of increasing salaries to reflect infla�on, the actuaries prudently allowed 
for 1% margin for 2019.

The mortality base table used for the scheme is A67/70 Ul�mate Tables, published jointly by the Ins�tute and 
Faculty of actuaries in the United Kingdom.

The table below shows the maturity profile of defined benefit obliga�on:

The weighted average dura�on of the defined benefit plan obliga�on is 8.15 years. (8.28 years in 2018)

This represents the grant elements of the Central Bank of Nigeria interven�on loans, a�er the loans were re-
measured using the effec�ve interest rate. The government grants have been recognised in the statement of 
financial posi�on and are being amor�sed through the profit or loss on a systema�c basis over the tenure of the 
loans.

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

This represents deferred rental income from an insignificant por�on of the Company's building held to earn rentals.

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

Terms and condi�ons of the above financial liabili�es:
 
• Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally se�led on 60-day terms. 
• Other creditors are non-interest bearing and have an average term of six months.  
 
 Trade payables, and other payables meet the defini�on of financial liability and their carrying amounts 

approximate fair value because the terms and condi�ons of payment is within 1 year for trade and other 
payables.

30b.  Other creditors
      Included in the other creditors are distributors and reps credit balances of N59million, (2018: N74million), 

deposit for disposal of Ecomed of N198 million (2018: N198million) and re�rement benefit from capital 
express of N8 million (2018: N8million).

30c.  Outstanding due non-Execu�ve Directors
 This represents the amount outstanding on Non-execu�ve director's fees for both 2018 and 2019

The ₦65 million (2018: ₦1.09billion) commercial paper is an unsecured short-term debt obtained from a non-bank 
financial ins�tu�on for working capital support as stated above. They have a maturity of 90 days with a roll over 
op�on and average interest rate of 20.5%. The fair value of the commercial papers are as stated.

Proposed for approval at the annual general mee�ng (not recognised as a liability as at 31 December).

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

Unclaimed dividend relates to dividend paid in the prior year which was returned by the registrar as unclaimed 
by the beneficiaries.

Dividends on ordinary shares:  

Dividend paid during the year was approved during annual general mee�ng by the shareholders. 

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

 Sec�on 120.2 of Companies and Allied Ma�ers Act requires that where a Company issues shares at premium 
(i.e. above the par value), the value of the premium should be transferred to share premium. This approval 
was authorised at the Annual General Mee�ng held on 20 July, 2017.

 Share premium arises from shares issued at a price higher than the nominal value. The current balance was 
because of increase in share capital with a nominal value of 50k from 200,000,000 to 1,500,000,000 and 
1,500,000,000 to 2,086,360,250 ordinary shares in November 2007 and April 2019 respec�vely.

35  Available for sale reserve  

 The reserve records fair value changes in available for sale financial asset.

 Gain or loss on equity available for sale financial asset is not taxable. Hence, no deferred tax was recognised for 
fair value gain or loss. This is to aid any user of the financial statement not familiar with Nigerian tax laws.

36  Guarantees and other financial commitments   

a. Capital expenditure   
 The company has proposed ₦758.5million for capital expenditure for 2020 financial year as follows:   
 Contracted for: ₦265.5 million   
 Not contracted for: ₦493 million   

b Financial commitments   
 The directors are of the opinion that all known liabili�es and commitments have been taken into account in 

the prepara�on of the financial statement under review. These liabili�es are relevant in assessing the 
Company's financial posi�on and performance.   

c Security of facili�es   
 The bank loans and overdra�s are secured principally by a legal mortgage over some of the Company's land 

and buildings, debenture on the Company's assets, lien on shipping documents of goods imported, personal 
guarantee of Dr. Fidelis A. Ayebae and joint and several guarantees of the Directors of Fidson Healthcare Plc. 
The mortgage debenture is on the land, building, plant and machinery of Fidson Healthcare Plc (including 

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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plant and machinery of the biotech factory located at Veepee Avenue, O�a Industrial Estate, Ogun State. The 
carrying amounts of the assets are N11.9billion at 31 December2019. (2018: N12.3billion).

37  Con�ngent liabili�es
There were judgements against the company in two suits with a total award of damages in the sum of N6,000,000 
payable. However, the judgement has been appealed. (31 December 2018: Nil).

38  Related party transac�ons
Included in related party transac�ons is outstanding balance of ₦184,637,000 (2018: 843,673,000) payable to the 
Managing Director being refund of personal loan granted and payment of outstanding allowances and fees due to 
him when FPL (Fidson Products Limited) was liquidated 31 December 2014.

38a Compensa�on of Key Management Personnel

38b. Directors' emoluments
 The remunera�on paid to the Directors is as follows:

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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40  Segment informa�on  

For management purposes, the performance of the business is assessed along product classes. Two of the 
Company's products have been iden�fied as reportable segments for the purpose of IFRS 8. However, informa�on 
for the product classes is only maintained at the revenue and cost of sales level. Financing and Income taxes are 
reported Company wide.  
 
There is no single external customer whose transac�on amount to 10% or more of the en�ty's revenues. Revenue 
for over the counter product accounts for 44% of total revenue, while Ethical product accounts for 56%. Revenue 
from Lagos region accounts for 30% of the total revenue. The Execu�ve Management Commi�ee monitors the 
opera�ng results of the whole business for the purpose of making decisions about resource alloca�on and 
performance assessment.  
 
The summary below shows the revenue and cost of sales informa�on made available to the Execu�ve management 
commi�ee:

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019



01

2019 Annual Reports & Accounts

88

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

None of the major customers of the Company account for up to 10% of total revenue.

40.1  Geographical Informa�on
Currently the company's opera�ons are domiciled in Nigeria
   
40.2  Informa�on about Major customers
Included in Revenue are revenues of approximately N567million (2018 N745million) which arose from sales to the 
company's largest customer. In addi�on, four other customers contributed more than 10% to the company's 
revenue altogether amoun�ng to N1.84billion (2018 N2.30billion).

41  Financial instruments risk management objec�ves and policies
The company deploys a number of financial instruments (financial assets and financial liabili�es) in carrying out its 
ac�vi�es. The key financial liabili�es, of the Company comprise bank borrowings, trade payables and finance leases 
that are deployed purposely to finance the Company's opera�ons and to provide liquidity to support the 
Company's opera�ons.
The financial assets of the Company include available-for-sale investments, loans and receivables, trade 
receivables, and cash and short-term deposits necessarily required for the opera�ons of the Company. 

The principal risks that Fidson Healthcare Plc is exposed to because of holding the above financial instruments 
include market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The senior management of the Company oversees the 
management of these risks through the establishment of adequate risk management framework with appropriate 
approval process, internal control and authority limits. Thus, the Company's financial risk-taking ac�vi�es are 
governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are iden�fied, measured and managed in 
accordance with those policies. The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall risk management of the 
Company reviews and agrees on policies for managing each of these risks inherent in its involvement in financial 
instruments and opera�ons are as summarised below.       
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 Market risk
 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in market prices. Market prices comprise four types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk, 
commodity price risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market 
risk include loans and borrowings, trade payables, available-for-sale investments, finance lease obliga�ons, 
cash and cash equivalents, bank overdra�, finance lease obliga�on and loans and receivables.

 
 Currency risk
 Management has set up a policy requiring the Company to manage their foreign exchange risk against their 

func�onal currency. The company is required to manage its en�re foreign exchange risk exposure with the 
Company finance. To manage their foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial transac�ons and 
recognised assets and liabili�es, the Company ensures that significant transac�ons are contracted in the 
country's func�onal currency. Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transac�ons or 
recognised assets or liabili�es are denominated in a currency that is not the Company's func�onal currency.

  
 Foreign currency sensi�vity
 The following tables demonstrate the sensi�vity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with 

all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair 
value of monetary assets and liabili�es.

 Interest rate risk
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 

because of changes in market interest rates. The company does not carry debt at fair value neither does it 
have any floa�ng rate exposure.

 Equity price risk
 This is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in market prices. Fidson Healthcare Plc has a price risk in rela�on to its available for sale investments. 
This is because the investments are traded in an ac�ve market and are subject to price fluctua�on. The 
company manages the equity price risk by placing limits on individual an. Reports on the equity por�olio are 
submi�ed to the senior management on a regular basis. The Board of Directors reviews and approves all 
equity investment decisions.

 At the repor�ng date, the exposure to listed equity securi�es at fair value was N3,720,000 (2018:N4,610,000). 
A decrease of 10% on the Nigerian Stock Exchange could have an impact of approximately N372,000 (2018: 
N461,000) on the income or equity a�ributable to the Company, depending on whether or not the decline is 
significant or prolonged. An increase of 10% in the value of the listed securi�es would only impact equity, but 
would not have an effect on the profit or loss.

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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 Credit risk
 Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not 

meet its obliga�ons under a financial instrument 
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. 
The sources of the Company's credit risk include 
trade receivables, receivable from related par�es 
and depos i ts  with  banks  and financia l 
ins�tu�ons. See Note 22a for analysis of the age 
of financial assets that are past due as at the end 
of the repor�ng year but not impaired the credit 
risk of the Company is unsecured The maximum 
exposure to credit risk for the components of the 
statement of financial posi�on at 31 December 
2019 is the carrying amounts as shown in Note 
22a. Refer to Note 25 for the maximum risk of 
Banks and financial ins�tu�ons.        

 
 Financial instruments and cash deposits       
 Credit risk from balances with banks and financial 

ins�tu�ons as well as deposit with ALM Trustees 
is  managed by the Company's treasury 
department in accordance with the Company's 
policy. The company limits its exposure for 
default by keeping cash with banks with good 
solvency margin. 

 Maximum exposure to credit risk at the repor�ng 
date is the carrying value of the financial asset 
disclosed in Note 24. Investments of surplus 
f u n d s  a r e  m a d e  o n l y  w i t h  a p p r o v e d 
counterpar�es and within credit limits assigned 
to each counter party. Counterparty credit limits 
are reviewed by the Company's Board of 
Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated 
throughout the year subject to approval of the 
Company's Finance Commi�ee. The limits are set 
to minimize the concentra�on of risks and 
therefore mi�gate financial loss through a 
counter party's poten�al failure to make 
payment.

 Trade receivables
 Customer credit risk is managed by credit 

managers and management as a whole subject to 
the Company's established policy, procedures 
and control rela�ng to customer credit risk 
management. Credit quality of the customer is 
assessed based on an extensive credit ra�ng 

scorecard and individual credit limits are defined 
in accordance with this assessment.

 Staff advance are also secured by employee 
salaries and deduc�ons are made at source. 
Receivable from related party is managed by the 
management subject to the Company's 
established policy, procedures and control 
rela�ng to credit risk management.

 Outstanding customer receivables are regularly 
monitored and any deliveries to major customers 
are generally covered by valid customer order. 
Customer backgrounds are studied to avoid 
concentra�on risk. The company evaluates the  
concentra�on of risk with respect to trade 
receivables as low.

 Balances with banks and financial ins�tu�ons
 Credit risk from balances with banks and financial 

ins�tu�ons is managed by the Managing Director 
in accordance with the Company's policy. 
Investments of surplus funds are made only with 
approved counterpar�es and within credit limits 
assigned to each counterparty. The policies are 
set and reviewed by the Board annually.

 Liquidity risk
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be 

unable to pay its obliga�ons when they fall due. 
The company monitors its risk to a shortage of 
funds using a recurring liquidity planning and 
con�nuous budget tool. The company's objec�ve 
is to maintain a balance between con�nuity of 
funding and flexibility through the use of bank 
overdra�s and bank loans. The Board of Directors 
defines the Company's liquidity policy annually.
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42a Fair values     
Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's financial 
instruments that are carried in the financial statements.

42b Determina�on of fair value and fair value hierarchy
     
As at 31 December 2019 the Company held some financial instruments carried at fair value on the statement of 
financial posi�on. The company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of non-
financial assets by valua�on technique:

Level 1: quote prices in ac�ve markets for iden�cal assets or liabili�es

Level2: other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, 
either directly or indirectly.

 Level 3: techniques that use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on 
observable market data.

The company has investment in listed equity securi�es. The fair value of the quoted equity shares is determined by 
reference to published price quota�ons in an ac�ve market.
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 There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.

 Interest bearing loan and borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest 
rates that reflects market risk characteris�cs at the measurement date.

 
 The fair value of the loans and borrowing are determined based on DCF method using discount rate that 

reflects the issuer's borrowing rate as at the end of the repor�ng period.

43  Capital management

Capital includes issued share capital, share premium, retained earnings and other reserves in the statement of 
financial posi�on. The primary objec�ve of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains 
healthy capital ra�os in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. 

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic condi�ons. 
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return 
capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

No changes were made in the objec�ves, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 
December 2019 and year ended 31 December 2018.

The company monitors capital using a gearing ra�o, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The 
company's policy is to keep the gearing ra�o between 45% and 60%. The company includes within net debt interest 
bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and cash and short-term deposits.

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
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44.  Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year a�ributable to ordinary shareholders 
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding at the repor�ng date. The following reflects the 
income and share data used in the basic earnings per share computa�ons:

There was no dilu�ve effect of ordinary shares during the repor�ng and the compara�ve years. 

45.  Events a�er the repor�ng period

 The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted on the global economy in the months of March and April 2020 and the 
following are impacts on our business:

   1. Devalua�on of the Naira due to the drop in the price of crude oil, which will put pressure on cost of 
raw/packaging materials

   2. Shortage in supply of key raw materials and packaging materials sourced from Asia
   3. Increase in ancillary costs like ocean freight costs and inland transporta�on in the short-term.

On a posi�ve note, the COVID-19 pandemic is providing opportuni�es to explore product development for products 
against infec�ous diseases. The virus has also compelled the government to priori�ze the healthcare sector with 
policies that will support growth and we intend to take full advantage of the benefits derivable from these policy 
changes. Manufacturing, distribu�on and selling ac�vi�es of our opera�ons are ongoing to meet the medicine 
needs of the country.
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As at the date of the approval of the financial statements, we are con�nuously assessing (with a view to quan�fying) 
the full impact of COVID-19 and the above on our opera�ons. We, however, an�cipate that we can adequately 
mi�gate the poten�al risks and maximise the opportuni�es of the pandemic.

Other than the above, there are no events or transac�on that has occurred since the repor�ng date which would 
have a material effect on these financial statements, or which would need to be disclosed in the financial statement
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT

The value added represents the wealth which the Company has been able to create by its own and its employees' 
efforts. This statement shows the alloca�on of that wealth to employees, providers of finance, government and 
that retained for the future crea�on of more wealth.
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Gentle non-constipating multi-nutrient 
formular for every woman before conception, 

during pregnancy and breast-feeding.

Prepares women for pregnancy

Improves quality of breast milk

Supports optimal health and well being 
of mother and baby during pregnancy

Prevent low birth weight and birth defects



THE FAST ACTING
TOPICAL ANALGESIC

...your safe option in pain and inammation.

ARTHRITIS
RHEUMATIC PAINS

MASTALGIA       JOINT PAINS
MUSCULO-SKELETAL PAINS

MUSCULAR SPRAINS & STRAINS
INFLAMMATION

For fast relief from 



PROXY FORM

Twenty first Annual General Meeting of Fidson 
ndHealthcare Plc holding at the Conference Centre 2  

Floor, Fidson Towers, 268 Ikorodu Road, Obanikoro, 

Lagos State, Nigeria on Thursday, 23rd July 2020 at 

11.00 a.m. 

I/We……………………………………………………

………………….of…………………………………

………………………………………………………

……………………………………...........…………....

.................................…hereby appoint Mr/Mrs/Chief 

………………….........………………………………

…………………………………………of……………

………………………………………...........................

……..………… or failing him/her, Mr. O. S. Adebanji 

or failing him Mr. F. A. Ayebae to act as my/our proxy to 

vote for me/us or on my/our behalf at the Annual 

General Meeting of the company to be held on the 23rd 

of July 2020.

……………………………………..

     Signature Date

Note:

A member of the company entitled to attend and vote at 

the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a 

proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of that member.

A proxy need not to be a member of the company. 

Registered holders of the certificated Fidson Healthcare 

Plc's shares and holders of dematerialized Fidson 

Healthcare Plc's shares in their own name who are 

unable to attend the meeting and who wish to be 

represented at the meeting must complete and return this 

proxy form.

The form must be received by the Registrars, Meristem 

Registrars, 213, Herbert Macaulay Way, Ebute-Meta, 

Lagos or by email  not info@meristemregistrars.com

later than 48 hours before the date of the meeting.

DETACH FROM HERE

Before posting the above card, please tear off this portion and retain it.

Serial Number:…………………………………..Number of shares held:………………………………………..

1. To declare a dividend.

2. To re-elect directors
 1. Mr. O. S. Adebanji
 2. Mrs. O. O. Ayebae
 3. Mr. O. O. Olayeye

3. To authorize the Directors to fix the 
remuneration of the Auditors.

4. To elect members of the Audit 
Committee in accordance with 
S e c t i o n  3 5 9 ( 4 )  ( 5 )  o f  t h e 
Companies and Allied Matters Act, 
CAP C20 LFN 2004.

5. To fix the remuneration of the 
directors

6. To consider and if thought fit pass 
the following resolution as a 
special resolution:

 “That a new Article 38 of the 
Articles of Association of the 
Company be and is hereby inserted  
to read as follows:

 “A meeting of the Board of 
D i r e c t o r s  m a y  b e  h e l d  b y 
conference call, video call or other 
digital or electronic means. A 
Director shall be entitled to 
participate in a Board Meeting by 
any Digital or electronic means 
a n d  w h e r e  a  D i r e c t o r  s o 
participates, he shall be counted 
for the purpose of determining 
whether a quorum has been formed 
and for determining the outcome of 
any vote taken at the meeting.”

7. To consider and if thought fit, to 
pass the following as an ordinary 
resolution:

 “That the general mandate given to 
the  Company to  en ter  in to 
recurrent transactions with related 
parties for the Company's day-to-
day operations, including amongst 
others the procurement of goods 
a n d  s e r v i c e s ,  o n  n o r m a l 
commercial terms be and is hereby 
renewed.”

Resolution For Against Abstain
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The Registrars, 
Meristem Registrars Limited, 
213, Herbert Macaulay Way, 
Adekunle, Yaba,
Lagos.



MANDATE 
FOR E-DIVIDEND 
PAYMENT

 It is our pleasure to inform you that you can henceforth, collect your dividend through DIRECT CREDIT into your Bank 

Account. Consequently, we hereby request you to provide the following information to enable us to direct payment of your 

dividend (when declared) into your bank account.

Item

   
FIDSON 
SHARES

Surname/Company’s Name(2) 

(1) 

Other Name (for Individual Shareholder)(2.1) 

Present Poster Address(2.2) 

City(2.3) 

Email Address(2.4) 

Mobile (GSM) Phone Number(2.5) 

Bank Name(3) 

Branch Address(3.1) 

Bank Account Number(3.2) 

Bank Sort Code(3.3) 

Please forward until further notice all future interest or dividends to which I/We become entitled for the 

item detailed in 1 above to the branch of the bank detailed in item 3.1.

(4)

Shareholder’s Signature or Thumprint Shareholder’s Signature or Thumprint

Company Seal/Incorporation Number (Corporate Shareholder)

AUTHORISED SIGNATURE AND STAMP OF BANKERS

The branch stamp and signature of the authorized signatory of your bank is required to confirm that the signature(s) in box 4 is that 

of shareholder(s) or an authorized signatory, before returning to the registrars.

D
E

T
A

C
H

 F
R

O
M

 H
E

R
E

Date(DD/MM /YYY)

Shareholder Account Number (if known)



The Registrars, 
Meristem Registrars Limited, 
213, Herbert Macaulay Way, 
Adekunle, Yaba,
Lagos.
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Gascol
® MAGALDRATE & SIMETHICONE

QUICK & EFFECTIVE RELIEF OF

GAS, HEARTBURN, INDIGESTION, 
DYSPEPSIA, FLATULENCE, PEPTIC ULCER 

DISEASE AND OTHER ACID-RELATED 
STOMACH DISORDERS



...for cough, cold & allergy

The job gets done The job gets done 
when the cold is gonewhen the cold is gone
The job gets done 
when the cold is gone

REFRESHINGREFRESHING
MORNINGSMORNINGS
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Nighttime Care



...we value life

Fidson Healthcare Plc.
Corporate Head Office: 
268, Ikorodu road, Obanikoro, Lagos, Nigeria.
Contact us:
       www.fidson.com       +234 807 700 8888
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